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June 29, 2012

CHAIRMAN S MESSAGE:

Our commitment to excellence in customer service is formally adopted in our mission statement,
pledging "to be acompany of excellence, providing water of superior quality and outstanding cusomer
sarvice." We are proud to say that in 2011 the MV WA once again provided high-quality water that met and
exceeded all federal water quality ssandards. And the vigilance of our technical and maintenance staff
helped assure that our nearly 130,000 Mohawk Valley cusomers were served every minute of every day.
We're also pleased to announce that the MV WA is offering several new enhancementsto existing cusomer
service programs in 2012, including service alerts and convenient bill-paying options.

New Service Alert System

"MVWA Alerts' is a new ingtant electronic-notification sysem designed to quickly notify customers
regarding changes in the status of water availability and service conditions. With this new technology,
MVWA can quickly deliver important notifications about situations that may affect your service, such as
water main bresks, water shutoffs; boil water orders; or regularly scheduled repairs. Messages are conveyed
electronicaly via e-mail, text message or voicemail sent to a home or mobile phone, or to a pager or other
device.

While no one likes the inconvenience of water service interruptions, we're confident you will benefit by
having up-to-the-minute details that will help you prepare, plan and know when service will resume. We
do understand the impact that awater interruption can have on your routine and your quality of life, as
wdll as your household or business operation, 0 you also have our commitment to resolve any service
interruption as quickly as possible.

New Bill Paying Conveniences and Automatic Recurring Payments Available

We are also introducing enhancementsto bill notification and payment systems. Customers may now
choose earth-friendly receipt of bills by getting them online, instead of receiving printed ones in the mail.
With nearly 130,000 customers, this advancement promises to save significant amounts of paper and
postage, as well as gaff and customer handling time, while adding ease and convenience.

Customers may also now pay water bills by e-check as another "green” step in the paperlessdirection. In
addition to the current credit card payment option, water bills can be paid by authorizing adirect debit
from customers' bank account.

MVWA is also offering the ability to make automated recurring payments. Customers can opt for a
monthly payment plan that letsthem allocate a certain amount each month towardsthe tota quarterly water
bill, or pay the full balance automatically each quarter. Automated payments can be deducted froman e-
checking account or adebit or credit card.

This year marksthe beginning of MVWA's fifteenth year of operation asapublic authority organization.
Given our charge, we're aways looking for waysto provide our customers with better service while
making sure operations continue to run efficiently, effectively, predictably and with utmogt aterntion to
water quality and water service.

ElisDelLia
Chairman of the Board
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June 29, 2012

To Members and Stakeholders of the Water Authority:

The Comprehensive Annual Financial Report of the Mohawk Valley Water Authority (“Water
Authority”) for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2012 is hereby submitted to the Water Authority
Board and al other stakeholders interested in the financial condition of our regional water
system. Thisreport is published in accordance with the requirements of the New York State
enabling legislation creating both the Water Authority and the Finance Authority, the debt-
issuing component of the Water Authority. In addition, requirements of financial reporting are
also gipulated in the various bond resolutions covering the issuance of indebtedness to the Water
Authority. Pursuant to those requirements, this comprehensive annual financial report of the
Water Authority is presented in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles
(GAAP) and audited in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards by a firm of
licensed certified public accountants. Overall, this report consists of four sections. Introductory,
Financial, Statistical and Compliance.

This report consists of management’ s representations concerning the financial position of the
Water Authority. Consequently, management assumes full responsibility for the completeness
and integrity of all the information presented in thisreport. To provide a reasonable basis for
making these representations, management of the Water Authority has established an internal
control environment that is designed both to protect the Water Authority’s assets from loss, theft,
or misuse and to compile sufficient reliable information for the preparation of the Water
Authority’s financial statements in accordance with GAAP. Because the cogts of internal
controls should not outweigh their benefits, the Water Authority’ s internal control environment
has been designed to provide reasonable rather than absolute assurance that the financial
statements are free from material misstatement. As management, we assert that, to the best of
our knowledge and belief, this report is complete and reliable in all material respects.

The goal of the independent audit isto provide reasonable assurance that the financial statements
of the Water Authority for the year ended March 31, 2012 are free from material misstatement.
The independent audit involves examining, on atest basis, evidence supporting the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements; assessing the accounting principles used and any
significant estimates made by management and evaluating the overall financial statement
presentation. The independent auditing firm concluded, based upon their audit, that there was a
reasonable basis for rendering an unqualified opinion and that the Water Authority’s financial
statements for the year ended March 31, 2012 are presented in conformity with GAAP. The
independent auditors' report is presented as the first component of the Financial Section of this
report.




MOHAWK VALLEY WATER AUTHORITY
LETTER OF TRANSMITTAL-CONTINUED

Generally accepted accounting principles require that management provide a narrative introduction,
overview, and analysis to accompany the financial statementsin the form of a Management Discussion
and Analysis (MD&A). This letter of transmittal should be read in conjunction with the MD& A that
can be found immediately following the independent auditors’ report in the Financial Section of this
document.

The information presented in the Financial Section of this report is perhaps best understood when it is
considered from the broader perspective of the specific environment within which the water system
operates. The Water Authority’s economic condition is a composite of its financial health and its
ability to meet its financial obligations and service commitments.

HISTORY OF THE WATER SYSTEM

The first formal organization to manage the water system in the Mohawk Valley region was the Utica
Aqueduct Company, established in 1802 by the New Y ork State Legislature. The company developed
a series of springs in the western part of today’s City of Utica (City). In 1848, the Utica Water Works
Company (Water Works) developed awell supply on Graffenburg Hill and constructed areservoir in
what is now the eastern part of the city, known as the Cornhill area. This system was supplying
800,000 gallons per day (GPD) by 1854. The Water Works operated the system until 1898. In 1898,
the West Canada Water Works Company was formed and purchased the exclusive rights to furnish
water to the City. A year later the two companies were merged to become the Consolidated Water
Company (Consolidated Water). Consolidated Water constructed the Deerfield Reservoirs in 1900,
and in 1906 began supplying water from West Canada Creek through a 17-mile transmission main.
Hinckley Reservoir was constructed by the State of New Y ork to supply the Barge Canal System in
1911. Thelast major open water storage reservoir was constructed in 1913 in the Town of Marcy.
Consolidated Water aso obtained the rightsto 48.5 million gallons per day (MGD) from Hinckley
Watershed in 1917. Pursuant to a 1937 decision of the Water Power and Control Commission
(WPCC), predecessor to Department of Environmental Conservation (DEC), which authorized the
purchase, the City took direct control of the system in 1938 when it purchased Consolidated Water. In
1941, the City established the Utica Board of Water Supply (UBWS) as a separate entity under City
jurisdiction to operate the water system. Major system construction projects under the UBWS
included a second 17-mile, 36-inch diameter water transmission main, completed in the 1970s and the
current 32 MGD water treatment plant completed in 1992.

The 1937 decision of the WPCC granted certain rights to towns and villages receiving water service
from UBWS. The interpretation of these rights resulted in numerous administrative and legal actions
between the City of Utica and adjoining towns and villages. Several disputes concerned the setting of
water rates for customers inside and outside the City limits. The formation of the Water Authority was
undertaken to provide regional participation in the ownership, operation, governance, and financing of
the water system. The creation of the Water Authority, as aregional entity, ensured a continued supply
of sufficient high quality water to the city and portions of 16 towns and villages, within the two-county
service area. The Water Authority began operation December 19, 1996.




MOHAWK VALLEY WATER AUTHORITY
LETTER OF TRANSMITTAL-CONTINUED

THE WATER AUTHORITY

Pursuant to the Upper Mohawk Valley Regional Water Board Act (Water Authority) and the Upper
Mohawk Valley Regional Water Finance Authority Act (Finance Authority), Title 10 and Title 10-A,
respectively, of Article 5 of the Public Authorities Law of the State of New Y ork, collectively referred
to asthe “Act” became effective August 2, 1994 following approval by the New Y ork State legislature,
the Water Authority acquired title of the city-owned water system through a sale agreement, dated
October 30, 1996, by and between the Water Authority and the Finance Authority, and the City of
Utica, for the purpose of acquiring title of the system’ s assets for the collection, transmission,
treatment, and distribution of water.

The Finance Authority, the financing entity of the Water Authority, entered into a financing agreement
dated October 30, 1996, with the Water Authority and the City of Uticato provide financing for the
acquisition of the water system through issuance of bonds and other financing. Under the financing
agreement, the Finance Authority agrees to issue bonds, whenever practical, to finance the projects,
including the acquisition of the system, undertaken by the Water Authority. In consideration of the
agreement, the Water Authority has agreed to impose rates, fees and charges in an amount sufficient to
pay debt service on any indebtedness issued by the Finance Authority and to operate the water system
in a self-sustaining, sound and economical manner and to maintain the water system in good working
order.

The Water Authority is a body corporate and politic constituting a corporate municipal instrumentality
of the State of New Y ork established and existing pursuant to the Act. The State of New Y ork created
the Water Authority in order to more equitably represent the service area it provides water service to
and to promote the strengthening and improvement of the regional water system.

Annually, the Water Authority is required to conduct a public hearing prior to establishing, fixing or
revising rates, fees or other charges. No governmental body, agency, corporation or officer of the State
of New York has jurisdiction of or control over, or is required to approve any water rates or charges for
services or facilities of the Water Authority. Section 1126-1 (8) of the Act expressly declares that
neither the Public Service Commission, the Department of Environmental Conservation nor any
municipal or state agency shall have any jurisdiction over the Water Authority or any regulation of the
rates, fees or other charges established, fixed or revised by the Water Authority except as provided by
law with respect to the supply of water outside the service area.

The Water Authority is obligated to pay debt service, PILOT payments and other obligations of the
Finance Authority. In order to fulfill these obligations, the Water Authority must fix appropriate fees
and charges. Based upon the Finance Authority’ s legal standing, fiscal dependency and financial
accountability to the Water Authority, the Finance Authority is considered a component unit under the
criteria set forth by the Government Accounting Standards Board (GASB). Further, the Finance
Authority, as component unit, is “blended” with the Water Authority because it exists solely to provide
services that predominately benefit the operations of that Water Authority.




MOHAWK VALLEY WATER AUTHORITY
LETTER OF TRANSMITTAL-CONTINUED

In fiscal 2003, the Water Authority received a “ Certificate of Amendment of Assumed Name”,
from the State of New Y ork’s Department of State, Division of Corporations changing the name
of the public benefit corporation from the Upper Mohawk Valley Regional Water Board to the
Mohawk Valley Water Authority. Essentially, the Water Authority will be *doing business as’-
dba Mohawk Valley Water Authority. The Water Authority will retain its legal name of
Upper Mohawk Valley Regional Water Board whenever conducting business that requires
legislative or legal action, (e.g. bonding or legislative amendments).

THE REPORTING ENTITY

The Water Authority is composed of twelve (12) members appointed as follows:

1 Two City of Uticaresidents appointed by the City Council;

1 Two City of Uticaresidents appointed by the Mayor;

1 Two City of Uticaresidents appointed by Oneida County Legislature;

1 Two members appointed by the Oneida County Executive-one of which shall be confirmed
by the Herkimer County L egislature-both of which are residents outside the City of Utica;

I One member appointed by the Town of New Hartford;

I One member appointed by the Town of Whitestown;

I One member appointed alternately by the Town boards of Marcy, Schuyler and Kirkland;

I One member appointed alternately by the Town boards of Trenton, Deerfield and Frankfort.

All Water Authority members are appointed for aterm of three years. The Water Authority
members are appointed for their full three year term or until a successor is appointed, except that
any person appointed to fill a vacancy will be appointed to serve only the unexpired term.

The Finance Authority, the financing entity of the Water Authority, has a separate board
consisting of five (5) members appointed a follows:

1 One City of Uticaresident appointed by the City Council;
1 One City of Uticaresident appointed by the Mayor;

1 One member by the Oneida County Executive-alternately appointed from aresident within
the City of Uticaand aresident outside the City of Utica;

I One member appointed alternately by the town Boards of New Hartford and Whitestown,

I One member appointed by a majority vote of representatives in attendance at a meeting for
such purpose from the towns of Deerfield, Frankfort, Kirkland, Marcy, Trenton and
Schuyler.

All Finance Authority members are appointed for aterm of three years. The Finance Authority
members are appointed for their full three year term or until a successor is appointed, except that
any person appointed to fill a vacancy will be appointed to serve only the unexpired term.

10



MOHAWK VALLEY WATER AUTHORITY
LETTER OF TRANSMITTAL-CONTINUED

PROFILE OF THE REGIONAL WATER SYSTEM

The regional water system serves a population of approximately 130,000 in the eastern portion of
Oneida County, including the City of Utica, the Towns of Trenton, Marcy, Deerfield, New
Hartford, Whitestown, Kirkland and Westmoreland; the Villages of Oriskany, Whitesboro,
Yorkville, New Hartford, New Y ork Mills and Holland Patent. The regional water system also
serves the western parts of the Towns of Frankfort and Schuyler in Herkimer County.

The source of water for the regional system is the Hinckley Reservoir located 18 miles north of the
City of Utica. The reservoir’s watershed encompasses 373 square miles of largely undeveloped
lands mostly within the Adirondack Park region. Hinckley Reservoir was created in 1911 and is
owned by the State of New Y ork. The reservoir has a capacity of 25 billion gallons and is used
primarily by the New Y ork Power Authority for power generation. The reservoir isalso used to
adjust the water levels on the Erie Canal system, as arecreation area, and the source of water for the
Water Authority. Presently, the Water Authority has a water supply permit to draw 48.5 million
gallons per day.

The distribution system consists of a network of mains, pump stations for higher areas, four
reservoirs, twenty-four storage tanks, twenty-three master meter sations and eighty-nine pressure
regulating altitude valve stations. Approximately 700 miles of mains for transmission and
distribution of water are included within the regional service area (See the service map on the next

page).

From the intake structure at the Hinckley Reservoir, the water is conveyed through two parallel
transmission mains to the Water Treatment Plant facility located downstream from Hinckley
Reservoir inthe Town of Trenton. The treated water is conveyed, by gravity, from the treatment
plant through two parallel transmission mains to the Marcy and Toby Road tanks. From there,
water is conveyed, by gravity, to the Deerfield, Marcy and Toby Road Tanks on the transmission
mains. Water in the distribution system is pumped to higher elevations to provide sufficient
pressure. All drinking water storage is within enclose concrete or steel tanks in accordance with
Department of Health Standards.

Reservoirs used in the past as part of the transmission and distribution systems are considered
excess capacity and remain in a standby mode to be used, if needed, primarily for fire fighting.

11
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MOHAWK VALLEY WATER AUTHORITY
LETTER OF TRANSMITTAL-CONTINUED

ECONOMIC OUTLOOK

The Water Authority’s customer base has had a modest increase of 715 customers since fiscal year
2003. Following a population loss during the 1990's, growth occurred primarily among the
suburban areas. Growth among the immigration population and other minorities primarily within
the City of Utica has somewhat supplanted population loss from the prior decade. Water sales from
residents and businesses within the City of Utica comprise 50% of total water sales and 51% of
consumption throughput the system. Thisisrelatively consistent compared to the previous ten
years. The largest growth areas continue to be in the towns of New Hartford, Marcy, and
Whitestown. Revenue from these towns has marginally increased due in part to this growth.

Since fiscal year 2003, annual consumption has dropped 80 million cubic feet. During fiscal year
2012, water consumption decreased 9.2 million cubic feet to 479.6 million cubic feet. Both monthly
and quarterly billed customers experienced this decrease with monthly customers more
significantly. The decrease isdue in part to conservation measures, the change-out and use of
water-saving appliances and more mild summer periods. Water production experienced a dramatic
increase compared to the prior year primarily due to upgrades at the treatment plant and the first-
time use of granulated activated carbon (GAC) in the filtering process. The testing of the new
process required the use of many millions of gallons. Production should taper off as the use of
GAC become a more standard of filtration.

During fiscal year 2012, water main extensions were completed in several towns and the City of
Utica. More significant main extensions include: 188 linear feet of 8 inch main on Ridge Road in
Utica; approximately 650 linear feet of 12 inch main extension on Ferguson Road in Frankfort; and
612 linear feet of 8 inch main on Andes Ave in Utica

These main extensions and repairs of main extensions are paid through the rates by the ratepayers.
In addition, water districts are often created within towns and villages paid through taxpayer funds.
As new water districts are completed, the infrastructure assets are transferred to the Water
Authority. The Water Authority has acquired millions of dollars of new infrastructure during the
past years at no cost to the organization from the growth within our service area.

The forecast for overall customer population within the service area remains stable for the
foreseeable future. No substantial growth is anticipated within the service area. Expansion into
areas outside the Water Authority service area is contingent upon reasonable solutions among
government agencies.

Rate increases are anticipated for the foreseeable future to offset normal operating costs and capital
investment as part of the Water Authority’s multi-year capital plan to maintain and upgrade the
existing system infrastructure.

13



MOHAWK VALLEY WATER AUTHORITY
LETTER OF TRANSMITTAL - CONTINUED

OUR COMMITMENT TO THE COMMUNITY

The Water Authority has made a commitment to helping the community by providing assistance
to other area water systems during times of need, expertise concerning water quality issues, and
information to the general public through public-access informational announcements and print.
The Water Authority believes that the “informed consumer is our best customer”. To that end,
the Water Authority continuesto provide a newsletter to its customers to inform them of current
issues affecting the water system, customer service enhancements, legislative actions affecting
water systems throughout the country, and future projects the Water Authority is contemplating
towards its goal of providing exceptional water at an affordable price.

FISCAL YEAR 2012 IN REVIEW
Water Production, Consumption and Water Sales

For fiscal year 2012, 7.1 billion gallons of water were treated at the filtration plant to meet
customer demands. Thisis an increase of 97 million gallons from the previous year. Customers
used 3.59 billion gallons of treated water, adrop of 60 million gallons compared to the previous
fiscal year and a decrease of 599 million gallons since fiscal 2003. The average production by
the water treatment plant ranged from 17.9 million gallons per day to 20.4 million gallons per
day. Customers used an average of 9.8 million gallons per day of water during fiscal year 2012,
consistent with the prior year. During atwo-day period in July 2011, the water production
peaked at 22.0 million gallons per day.

Unaccounted-for-water of approximately 25%-35% is the result of an aging water system
infrastructure; however, much effort has been put into identifying and correcting the sources. A
second phase of leak detection has been completed and a third phase has begun by an outside
engineering firm. The engineering firm’s objectives are to follow-up on previous leaks detected
aswell as identify any new leaks throughout the system.

Total operating revenue for fiscal year 2012 increased $147,000 to $20.4 million compared to the
previous year. Specifically, water sales increased less than 1.0% to $19 million dollars for fiscal
year 2012. Other revenue sources remained relatively the same as the prior year at $1.4 million.
Operating expenses increased $1.2 million to $13.7 million. The most significant dollar change
was at the treatment plant in the amount of $794,000. The introduction of granulated activated
carbon (GAC) into the filtration process cost approximately $800,000. This material replaces the
sand-based material used in the four filtration beds at the treatment plant. This change isthe
result of more stringent health standards attached to drinking water. The annual operating
expense is projected to range between $800,000 and $1 million. Other significant fluctuationsin
operating expenses were in system repair and maintenance. Maintenance salaries, wages and
benefits increased $300,000 as the result of filling vacant positions from the previous year. In
addition, $74,000 was spent on the continuation of leak detection by outside engineers. Inthe
past, leak detection has been capitalized because of its potential long-term use in detecting leaks
in the system. However, because of the age of the water infrastructure, leak detection is
becoming an annual review as upgrades and rehabilitation of the system becomes more
prevalent. Also, repairsto vehicles and equipment and water meter purchases increased $38,000
and $64,000, respectively. These increased were more than offset by the reduction of paving
(street restoration) costs by $149,000.

14
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On-going Litigation

Mohawk Valley Water Authority vs. Erie Boulevard Hydropower, LP and New Y ork State Canal
Corporation—On April 25, 2005, the Water Authority commenced litigation in New York State
Supreme Court for Oneida County seeking a determination of the Water Authority’s rightsto draw
water from the West Canada Creek and Hinckley Reservoir under common law, satute and
agreements.

On May 15, 2009, Oneida County Supreme Court Judge Samuel D. Hester rendered his decision
concerning the Water Authority’s summons and complaint consisting of 17 causes of action against
the State of New Y ork and/or Erie Boulevard Hydropower, L.P (Erie). In addition, the Judge ruled
on the defendants' counterclaim for monetary damages and indemnification from liability from
other parties for the Water Authority’s past use of Hinckley Reservoir water.

The Court granted relief requested by the Water Authority, confirming its right to draw water from
the Hinckley Reservoir and West Canada Creek without major major encumbrances (i.e.,
compensating flows). The Court ruled favorably in the Water Authority’ s rights to draw water from
Hinckley Reservoir against Erie and dismissed its counterclaims. The Court did not give full relief
against New York State and the NY S Canal Corporation; instead, settle for a quantity less than
preferred under the original claim.

On October 18, 2010, the Appellate Division issued a decision on the appeals affirming the court’s
decision to grant summary judgment in the Water Authority’ s favor against Erie Hydropower and
dismissal of Erie Hydropower’s counterclaims. The Appellate Division modified the Court’s
decision with respect to limiting the Water Authority’s withdrawal to 35 cfs on the basis of
incomplete evidence.

The Water Authority’s final claim that it can withdraw water from Hinckley Reservoir free from
compensation obligation to the State and the State’s counterclaim that the Water Authority is
obligated to comply with the 1917 agreement, will be tried before the Oneida County Supreme
Court. The datefor trial has not been determined.

On or about May 17, 2010, the Water Authority served notice in Albany, NY Court of Claims to
intervene in the matter of Erie Boulevard Hydropower, LP, the New Y ork State Canal Corporation
and the New Y ork State Thruway Authority to protect its rights in this litigation concerning the
interpretation of the 1921 agreement. This 1921 agreement governs the operation of the Hinckley
Reservoir and the protocol in maintaining the reservoir under drought and emergency conditions.

The motion to intervene by the Water Authority was denied by the New Y ork State Court of Claims
in Albany. The motion to intervene by the Water Authority was denied by the New Y ork State
Court of Claimsin Albany.

Subsequently, the Court ruled in favor of New Y ork State against Erie Boulevard Hydropower
holding that the State would not be responsible for monetary compensation nor compensating water
flows to Erie Boulevard Hydropower asthe result of diversions necessary to maintain levels and
function of the Hinckley Reservoir.

15
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WORK FORCE RETENTION AND DEVELOPMENT

Since regionalization of the Mohawk Valley water system in 1996, the number of employees at the
Water Authority has increased from 76 employees to 97 employees at the end of fiscal year 2012.
The most significant increase occurred with the staffing of the water treatment plant that went into
servicein 1992. Following a short period of operation and maintenance of the facility by an
independent firm, the Water Authority took over full operation in 1998 and has a current staff of
nine.

During the last four fiscal years, several long-term management employees retired. Most of these
positions were filled by existing employees while other positions are being reorganized to fit the
Water Authority’s needs into the future. Asaresult, maintenance crew and engineering positions
became vacant and were subsequently filled. For fiscal year 2012, aturnover rate of less than 5.0%
wasrealized. Thisrate of turnover has been relatively consistent for the past several years.

Much effort has been made to provide employees with a rewarding and safe environment through
incentive programs and developing and maintaining safety-training programs. This includes
requiring staff to pass adriver’s safety test prior to operating company vehicles and equipment. In
addition, staff requiring industry-specific safety training was completed, consistent with prior years.
Among other types of training, proper trenching and excavating techniques were examined. Also,
employees are trained in the area of handling and removing hazardous waste.

Capital construction and remediation of the existing system continues to be a major focus in time
and dollars. Existing staff has been used to monitor a multitude of projects throughout the water
system, particularly water main extensions. Likewise, an additional maintenance crew added in
fiscal year 2002 has helped to alleviate the added pressure on the four existing maintenance crews.
Management continues to review the production of the crew while implementing mechanisms to
optimize their time and efforts.

Incorporating new technology into the daily operations continues to be a management focus. Full
utilization of awork order system is schedule in the next several years. Additional upgrades and
enhancements are on the horizon to make the work order system more useful including the tracking
of costs by work order and inventory used for each job. Daily workflow is recorded, amended,
updated and completed in the work order system providing greater awareness and function to all
staff.

The requisition, bidding and processing of operating and capital purchases continuesto evolve. The
use of electronic bidding and purchasing software will strengthen controls will providing increased
efficiency. The incorporation of electronic invoicing, receiving and payment process is also being
explored.

16
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CAPITAL CONSTRUCTION

Asinthe past years, capital projects continued to require a large share of the Water Authority’s
budget, staff time and focus. The Water Authority has implemented a comprehensive Capital

I mprovement Program (CIP) with the goal of improving the water system'’s infrastructure through
increased system capacity and dependability. Specifically, target areas include upgrading storage
and delivery, enhance water quality, identify and comply with pending regulatory requirements,
protect the water source and its watershed, and reduce unaccounted-for water. Security
improvements, as recommended in the Vulnerability Assessment report, are underway and will
continue through subsequent years. The capital project committee of the Water Authority has
identified $46 million in projects over the next 15 years. These projects have been categorized into
“priority type” and “project level”.

There are three project levels and seven priority types identified to prioritize funds and risk
associated with the water system. In addition, the CIP plan has flexible components to allow for
projects to be moved based upon changing conditions, both internally and externally.

The three project levels are as follows:
1) Maintenance of water system assets,
2) Remediate system deficiencies; and
3) Compliance with state and federal mandates.

The project levels help decision-makers, primarily the Board of the Water Authority, to understand
the continual needs of the water system. Priority is given to maintenance, then remediation and
finally to mandates.

The seven priority types are as follows:

1) Remediate imminent public health risks;

2) Remediate health and safety risks for Authority personnel;

3) Comply with current regulatory requirements,

4) Solve problems related to inadequate water pressure or flow, comply with Authority standards;
5) Improve reliability and/or redundancy of supply;

6) Routine replacement upgrades, and

7) Cost/effectiveness of system expansion or acquisitions.

In conjunction with these project levels, the priority types identified above provide board members
with atool to better understand the short-term and long-term implications of decisions.
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CAPITAL CONSTRUCTION-continued
When complete, the projects identified in the current capital plan will improve water quality and
production efficiency, remediate system deficiencies, and ensure the Water Authority’s ability to
comply with federal, state and local regulations. Some of the significant capital projects completed
during the past year are as follows:

Installation of New Water Mains and Main Replacements

Frankfort

Ferguson Road required 649 linear feet of new 12 inch water main installations to enhance fire
protection and water flow at a cost of $94,902;

Utica

Ridge Road required nearly 188 feet of new 8 inch water main along with valves and hydrants to
eliminate undersized mains and provide hydrants in several locations enhancing fire protection and
water flow. The installation was conducted by Water Authority crews at a cost of $36,670.

Deerfield Tank

A 10 million gallon tank was constructed to provide water storage for the system’'s low zone. This
construction was prompted by new EPA water quality regulations requiring all water storageto be
covered. Asaresult, the existing Deerfield Reservoir has now been placed in standby mode to be

used in case of fire or emergency. The final cost of the project was $$6,393,801.

Canal Tunneling

Two parallel water mains at 600 linear feet each were installed under the Erie Canal in Marcy. The
ingtallation included two special 24 inch diameter polyethylene mains through the use of directional
drilling methods. These mains will replace two 100 year old mainsthat are partially visible on the
bank of the Canal and have failed several times in the recent past. The connection work to these
mains will occur in the fall of 2012.

Roof Replacements at the Water Treatment Plant, Luke Road Pump Station and Kemble Street
Storage Building

Aging and leaking roofs on these three facilities were completed at a cost of $553,829. The
Treatment Plant required special preparation to prevent material from mixing with the ongoing
filtration process.
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FINANCIAL STABILITY

Water Authority residential customers are in the upper range of annual water costs when comparing
similar systems in the northeast. Likewise, commercial customers are in the mid-range of annual
costs. However, dueto asevere lack of reinvestment into the water system during the 1980's and
into the 1990’s, with the exception of the water treatment plant construction completed in 1992, the
Water Authority continues to advance an aggressive Capital |mprovement Program. Rates are
anticipated to increase, in marginal percentages, to help fund construction projectsthat will help
maintain the current system and remediate existing deficiencies.

Prudent financial planning plays a vital role in assuring the viability and stability of the water
utility. The following events highlighted the importance of financial planning in fiscal year 2012:

I Water Rate Model — This comprehensive financial tool continues to drive the rate-setting
process and is an integral part of the annual budget. The water rate model consists of a multitude
of spreadsheets designed to reflect al current and future financial commitments the Water
Authority will face over the next 20 to 30 years. Inturn, it projects probable future rates. The
water rate model also incorporates additional features that provide future impacts on current or
proposed capital projects and water system investments.

The rate model was used extensively to project the impact of the Water Authority’s current
operating and capital plans. The model is essential in assessing the affect of potential
consumption losses in future operating budgets. Absent this tool, there isarisk that rates would
not be properly set to offset consumption elasticity. Asin the past, the model isinstrumental in
projecting the effects of incorporating capital construction plans by “priority type” and “project
level” noted in previous paragraphs.

I Annual Rate Adjustments — Through the use of the Water Authority’ s comprehensive water rate
model, water rates were raised 2.0% for fiscal year 2012. Thistrend of annual rate adjustments
is consistent with the Water Authority’s long-term financial plan that incorporates an
aggressive, yet reasonable, capital improvement program.

As aresult of the budget approved for fiscal year 2012, the Water Authority continued its multi-
year capital project program. Anticipated bonding for new projects is projected for the summer
of 2012. The fiscal year 2013 approved budget incorporated a portion of this projected new
debt service into the water rate structure.
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1 Cash Reserve Funding — The Board of the Water Authority continues to make a commitment to
the long-term stability and growth of the water system by funding it reserves. Infiscal year
2007, areserve was created by the Board with the goal of eliminating the need to bond for
maintenance of capital construction. Over a several year period, the Board has committed to
setting-aside funds to meet the annual capital maintenance costs currently estimated at $750,000
annually. During fiscal year 2012, the Board funded this reserve in the amount of $750,000.
The current accumulated balance is $1.3 million. No other reserves were funded.

1 Operating Cash Surplus— The Water Authority experienced an increase in operating cash during
fiscal year 2012 of $908,000. The primary reason for this large increase is the timing for payout
of operating costs including equipment. Over the past several years, operating cash has
experienced healthy increases besides being able to fund capital reserves and the required bond
covenant established in the original 1996 bond resolution. Operating surpluses will allow
flexibility to fund unforeseen operating costs and emergency repairs.

I Debt Service Coverage — Continued strong fiscal management resulted in debt service coverage
of 1.53 (Seethe debt service coverage schedule in the Statistical Section). The coverage is less
than the rate consultant’s fiscal year 2012 cash coverage projection of 2.25. However, the rate
consultant’s calculation includes the use of cash carried forward from previous fiscal years.
When this amount is added, the coverage increasesto 2.62. Actual debt service coverage has
exceeded the rate consultant’s projection since the Water Authority’s inception. Thiswill
strengthen the Water Authority’s prospects for raising its future bond rating.

I Bond Rating — The Water Authority is currently the recipient of favorable credit ratings from
Standard and Poor’ s Ratings Services and Moody’ s Investors Service.

In February 2012, Standard and Poor’ s Rating Services upgraded the Water Authority from A to
A+. Therating assigned to the Water Authority’s 2008A revenue bonds indicated a “ strong
financial risk profile, with consistently strong debt service coverage and liquidity position.” In
addition, S& P noted the regional water system has a “very diverse customer base,” and an
“ample water capacity to meet demand.”

Moody’ s Investors Service revised their rating scale during 2010 resulting in a change to the
Water Authority’srating from an Az to anA;. The A; rating is considered “ upper-medium grade
and the obligations are subject to low credit risk”. Moody’s Investors Service last reviewed the
Water Authority’s bond rating in December of 2008.

The Water Authority has proven its commitment to providing quality water and unparalleled
community service. All financial indicators have been met or exceeded expectation.
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CONTINUED OPERATIONAL EFFICIENCIES

From large meter replacement programs, customer information system upgrades, SCADA and
Water Modeling software to the creation of a comprehensive work order system, the Water
Authority has taken some major stepsin creating operational efficiencies that will not only
benefit current customers but future system stakeholders. In 2012, efforts included:

SCADA, Water Quality monitoring and security Enhancements — As part of a long-range
program, the MV WA continues to install system monitoring sensors and surveillance
instruments at facilities throughout the Regional System. Significant access and camera
systems were installed at the Kemble Street Maintenance Facility. The system sensors are
connected into the MVWA Supervisory Control and Data Acquisition SCADA system for
monitoring at Headquarters and the WTP. This effort has vastly improved the system
monitoring and operation as well as security. An added benefit is the ability to make
adjustments to system pressures quickly in response to either emergencies or changing water
demands.

Hydraulic Modeling — The hydraulic model of the Regional System was utilized by MVWA
staff to evaluate system deficiencies, identify capital improvements and for emergency
response planning. It was also used to analyze water age during a discolored water event in
the summer of 2011 and for evaluating system changes at several locations.

Customer Service Enhancements — As along standing commitment to provide greater
service, information and payment options to water customers, enhancements were made to
the Water Authority’ s web site during the year including electronic check (E-Check)
payments; reoccurring payment options for customers; and delinquent account look-up for
landlords. These enhancements will allow customers to have more control over their
accounts and enhance their timely payments.

Also, the customer information system (CIS) received enhanced capabilities to track
discolored water calls and map those call to provide maintenance personnel with atool to
locate water system problems and potential main breaks

On-line Electronic Purchase Reguest System — Procurement has been greatly enhanced with
an automated purchase request system (Erequester). Staff and managers can request the
purchase of goods and services through a purchase request software that links to the purchase
order and accounts payable modules of the existing financial software. Based upon pre-
established procurement rules, the completed request automatically forwards to the next
reviewer for their approval. Upon final approval, a purchase order or payment request is
generated. In addition, all approvals and changes or revisions are date and time-stamped on
the request providing a complete audit trail. Requesters can inquire and view their request-
status at any time.
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FINANCIAL INFORMATION

Internal Control Environment — Management of the Water Authority is responsible for
establishing and maintaining an internal control structure designed to ensure that assets of the
water utility are protected from loss, theft, or misuse, and to ensure that adequate accounting data
are compiled to allow for the financial presentation of financial statementsin conformity with
generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP). The internal control structureis designed to
provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance that these objectives are met. The concept of
reasonable assurance recognizes that the cost of controls should not outweigh their benefit.

Budget Formulation and Control — Public Authorities Law of the State of New Y ork requires
the Water Authority complete and deliver an annual budget to New Y ork State government
officials 60 days prior to the Water Authority’s fiscal year end. In addition, an independent rate
consultant is required to ensure the Water Authority establishes and collects rates, fees, and
charges sufficient to pay all operating costs, debt service, PILOT payments, and any other
amounts necessary to operate the utility system. Thisisknown as the “Rate Covenant.” To that
end, aformalized process has been established culminating in areport by the independent rate
consultant to ensure that all necessary rates, fees and other charges have been established to pay
all costs associated with operating the water utility. Components of the budget process are as
follows:

Through the water rate model, formulating, updating and maintaining a long-range plan,
presently twenty (20) years—

1 For operating and maintenance costs;

1 For addition and replacement of fleet inventory and water system facilities based upon
current and projected usage;

1 For identifying capital construction needs by “priority level” and “project type’ for the
planned issuance of debt or use of capital reserves;

1 For adjustment of water ratesto meet the revenue requirements identified above.

Other budgetary controls include:

1 Developing multi-year budgets by department function based upon long-range activities and
capital project planning.

1 Establishing and monitoring cost control center budgets for labor, materials and services for
each of the operational plans (departments) and capital projects cost centers.

1 Providing explanation of significant variances between budgeted and actual expenses to the
Board on a monthly basis.
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ADDITIONS TO UTILITY PLANT

Capital construction completed for fiscal year 2012 amounted to $7.2 million compared to $5.7
in the previous fiscal year. Construction projects currently underway in the amount of $14.4
million will be completed over the next several years. These projects consist primarily of water
tanks under construction, when complete will improve water capacity and efficiency, eliminate
some lingering system deficiencies, and comply with regulatory mandates.

As part of normal operations, the Water Authority acquires newly constructed and existing water
districts from cities, towns, villages and private contractors for operation and maintenance.
These contributed capital assets are recorded at fair market value at the date acquired. No utility
assets were acquired from municipalities or private contractors during fiscal years 2012 or 2011.
Please see Note 5 — Utility Plant and Depreciation for further discussion on thisissue.

DEBT ADMINISTRATION
No new bonds were issued during fiscal year 2012.

During fiscal 2009, the Water Authority issued $12.2 million in revenue bonds for the continued
advancement of the Water Authority’s multi-year capital plan. At the time of the sale, the Water
Authority received an A3 rating from Moody’ s Investors Service. Moody’s Investors Service
revised their rating scale during 2010 resulting in a change to the Water Authority’ s rating from
the 2008 rating of A; to anA;. However, the rating remains in the upper-medium grade scale and
its revenue bonds are considered low credit risk.  In addition, Standard and Poor’s rated the
Water Authority at an equivalent rating of “A”. In February 2012, this rating was upgraded to
“A+". See“bong rating” under the Financial Stability section above.

At March 31, 2012, bonds totaling $58.7 million were outstanding. In addition, a promissory
note of $6.1 million is due over the next 25 years to the City of Utica as part of the water system
purchase agreement. See Note 8 in the Financial Section for more detalls.

PAYMENT IN LIEU OF TAXES (PILOT) PAYMENTS

Pursuant to the Act initiating the water system purchase from the City of Utica, the Water
Authority was established as an “exempt organization” whereby no fees, taxes, levies or
assessments would be charged against the Water Authority. In return for this exemption,
municipalities and school districts within the service area affected by the exemption would be
paid in lieu of taxes or assessments an amount established under the Act. Seethe Statistical
Section, non-operating revenues and expenses, for a detail of the PILOT payments required. All
payments are subordinate to debt service payment on bonds as defined by the Act. However, the
Board is empowered to make such payments subordinate to other payments under the Act or any
subsequent bonding by the Finance Authority.

The Board of the Water Authority may reduce the amounts paid to the municipalities and school
districts under this arrangement following a resolution approved by at least 75% of the Board.
Such decreases must be uniformly applied to each municipality and school district.
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DISCLOSURE REQUIREMENTS

Certain information is being provided by the Water Authority to various Continuing Disclosure
Undertakings that have been executed by the Board of the Finance Authority in order that
participating underwriters may comply with Rule 12¢2-12 promulgated by the Securities and
Exchange Commission (SEC). These disclosures made by the Water Authority can be found on
the following pages:

Audited Financial Statements Financial Section

Outgtanding I ndebtedness Financial Section; Statistical Section
Number of Service Connections (Meters) Statistical Section

Water System Facilities Statistical Section

Revenues and Expenses Financial Section (RSl)

Capital Expenses Statistical Section

Detail of Revenues and Expenses Financial Section (RSl)

Largest Customers Statistical Section

Current Water Rates Statistical Section

CASH MANAGEMENT

The Water Authority participates in several investment programs designed to optimize financial
returns while minimizing risk. New York State investment statutes govern the Water Authority’s
cash investment policies. The Water Authority’ s investment policy closely resembles New Y ork
State statutes. The Water Authority is authorized to use demand accounts, certificates of deposit
and investment pools. Permissible investments include obligations of the U.S. Treasury and U.S.
agencies, repurchase agreements, and obligations of New York State or its localities. All
investments are required to be AAA rated.

Where practical, cash proceeds in normal business operations are invested in money market
funds currently earning .30%. Other short-term investment options are also being explored.

An on-going slow recovery in the market during fiscal year 2012 resulted in overall low
investment earnings. Trust fund money from capital borrowing was deposited into various
investment vehicles, primarily certificates of deposit and repurchase agreements, earning in the
range of .01% to 5.13%.
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Under requirements stipulated in various bond resolutions, a trustee has been assigned to hold
proceeds from the related bond issues. In addition, the trustee is required to hold funds deposited
from time to time to pay Registered Owners (bondholders). Thetrusteeis required to invest and
reinvest funds as instructed by an authorized representative of the Finance Authority.

Over the last several fiscal years, the Water Authority has been participating in an investment
program consisting of certificates of deposit for the larger trust fund balances including debt
service reserve funds, construction funds and the repair and improvement fund. Investment
returns are estimated between .40% and 3.50% annually depending on the term of the certificate.
All certificates are appropriately covered by FDIC limits.

Other trugt funds are invested in either a Master Repurchase Agreement or State and Local
Government Securities (SLGS). The Master Repurchase agreements have a return of 5.13% and
the SLGS have areturn ranging from 2.37% to 4.67%.

Please see Note 3 for amore detailed reporting of Restricted Asset investments.
RISK MANAGEMENT AND LIABILITY INSURANCE

The Water Authority carries general liability and property coverage for catastrophic losses on
existing property, newly acquired property, floods, fire, and limited coverage on other
miscellaneous property. Currently, thereisa$51 million limit on buildings and personal
property. Coverage is also afforded under a municipal boiler and machinery policy primarily to
cover equipment breakdown. This carries a $25 million limit. There isalso an inland marine
policy to specifically cover schedule property.

Casualty coverage includes a vehicle coverage policy with an aggregate $1 million liability for
bodily injury and property damage. Also, the Water Authority has an umbrella policy or excess
catastrophic liability in the aggregate amount of $10 million.

The Water Authority also has obtained appropriate worker’s compensation insurance, crime
insurance and a public official policy for its board members.

Please see the Statistical Section for amore detailed representation of the types of insurance
coverage by the Water Authority.
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OTHER INFORMATION

INDEPENDENT AUDIT

The“Act” requires an annual audit of the books and records of the Water Authority by an
independent accounting firm. The independent accounting firm of Marvin & Company, P.C.
was jointly selected by the Water Authority and Finance Authority. The Firm was hired for a
three-year term and the fiscal year 2012 audit is the final year of their three-year term. Marvin &
Company’ s report is included in the Financial Section of this report.

AWARDS/PUBLICATIONS

Financial Reporting. The Government Finance Officers Association of the United States and
Canada (GFOA) awarded a Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting to
the Authority for its comprehensive annual financial report (CAFR) for the fiscal year ended
March 31, 2011. Thisisthe ninth consecutive year that the Authority has achieved this
prestigious award. In order to be awarded a Certificate of Achievement, agovernment unit must
publish an easily readable and efficiently organized CAFR. Thisreport must satisfy both
generally accepted accounting principles and applicable legal requirements.

A Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting isvalid for a period of one
year only. We believe this 2012 CAFR continues to meet the Certificate of Achievement
Program’s requirements and we are submitting it to the GFOA to determine its eligibility for
another certificate.
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CERTIFICATE OF ACHIEVEMENT

For the ninth consecutive year, the Government Finance Officers Association of the United
States of America and Canada (GFOA) has awarded the Mohawk Valley Water Authority with
its prestigious Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting.

Thisreflects the Water Authority’ s commitment to timely, accurate, and comprehensive financial
reporting for its customers, business leaders, government officials and other stakeholders with a
close interest in the Mohawk Valley’ s premiere water system.

Certificate of

Achievement
for Excellence
in Financial
Reporting

Presented to

Mohawk Valley Water
Authority, New York

For its Comprehensive Annual
Financial Report
for the Fiscal Year Ended
March 31, 2011

A Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial
Reporting is presented by the Government Finance Officers
Association of the United States and Canada to
government units and public employee retirement
systems whose comprehensive annual financial
reports (CAFRs) achieve the highest
standards in government accounting
and financial reporting.
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CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS AND CONSULTANTS

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

Board of Directors
Mohawk Valley Water Authority

We have audited the accompanying combined statements of net assets of Mohawk
Valley Water Authority (the Authority) as of March 31, 2012 and 2011, and the related
combined statements of revenue, expenses, and changes in net assets, and cash flows
for the years then ended. These combined financial statements are the responsibility of
the Authority's management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
combined financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with U. S. generally accepted auditing
standards and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government
Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those
standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the combined financial statements are free of material misstatement. An
audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and
disclosures in the combined financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the
accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as
evaluating the overall combined financial statement presentation. We believe our audits
provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the combined financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all
material respects, the financial position of Mohawk Valley Water Authority as of

March 31, 2012 and 2011, and the changes in their net assets and their cash flows for
the years then ended in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles.

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report
dated June 29, 2012, on our consideration of the Mohawk Valley Water Authority's
internal control over financial reporting and our tests of its compliance with certain
provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements, and other matters. The
purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over
financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an
opinion on the internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is
an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing
Standards and should be considered in assessing the results of our audit.
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U.S. generally accepted accounting principles require that the management's discussion and analysis on
pages 33 through 52 and the Schedule of Funding Progress for Retiree Health Plan on page 101 be
presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the
basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers
it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate
operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required
supplementary information in accordance with U.S. generally accepted auditing standards, which
consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing
the information for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial
statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do
not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do
not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the combined financial statements of
Mohawk Valley Water Authority as a whole. The introductory section on pages 5 through 29 and
statistical section on pages 115 through 147 are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are
not a required part of the combined financial statements. The accompanying supplementary schedules
on pages 103 through 112 are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are also not a required
part of the combined financial statements. These supplemental schedules are the responsibility of
management and were derived from and relate directly to the underlying accounting and other records
used to prepare the combined financial statements. The information on these schedules has been
subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the combined financial statements and
certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the
underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the combined financial statements or to the
combined financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with U.S.
generally accepted auditing standards. In our opinion, the information is fairly stated, in all material
respects, in relation to the combined financial statements as a whole. The introductory section and
statistical sections have not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the
combined financial statements and, accordingly, we do not express an opinion or provide any assurance
on them.

:/’/(a.zm:n and Conﬁbany, PO

June 29, 2012
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MOHAWK VALLEY WATER AUTHORITY
MANAGEMENT S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

This Management Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) of Mohawk Valley Water Authority
(MVWA) provides an introduction to the major activities affecting the operations of the regional
water system and an overview to the financial performance and statements of the MWV A for the
fiscal year ended March 31, 2012 (FY 2012). The information contained in the MD&A should
be considered in conjunction with the information contained in the Letter of Transmittal included
in the Introduction Section and various historic summaries of activities and financial
performance included in the Supplementary Information and Statistical Sections of this report.

Following this MD&A are the financial statements of MVWA together with the notes thereto,
which are essential to a full understanding of the data contained in the financial statements. In
addition to the financial statements and accompanying notes, the financial section also presents
certain required supplementary information regarding budgetary comparisons to actual results,
major infrastructure asset values, debt service requirements to maturity, and PILOT payments to
other governmental units as part of the regionalization agreements.

WATER SYSTEM HIGHLIGHTS

I Major capital construction for FY 2012 included the completion of phase two of the
compliance requirements concerning open water storage. This second phase began in FY
2010 and included the construction of two tanks in proximity to the Marcy reservoir. As a
result, the reservoir is now off-line from daily use to be used primarily for firefighting.
Phase-one consisted of the construction of Deerfield tank and the clearwell tank at the
treatment plant. The Deerfield tank was completed and put on-line in fiscal year 2012.

Compliance with open storage requirements promulgated by the United States Environmental
Protection Agency (EPA) takes effect in 2012, and applies to water systems serving
populations over 100,000. Essentially, all open reservoirs must be treated as a raw water
source and either re-treated or eliminated from dally use. Methods of achieving this
compliance include covering the reservoir or constructing alternative tanks.

MV WA chose to construct a series of tanks in a two-phase capital plan to eliminate all open
reservoirs in the distribution system. The first phase consisted of the Deerfield reservoir
tank, a 10 million gallon tank constructed in FY 2008 through FY 2010. The tank was put
on-line FY 2012. In addition, the clearwell tank at the water treatment plant was completed
in FY 2009 and went on-line in FY 2010. This additional clearwell will allow more contact
time with chemicals used to clean the raw water passing through the treatment plant.
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MANAGEMENT S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS-CONTINUED

WATER SYSTEM HIGHLIGHTS-continued

The second phase of the $25 million capital project started in the summer of 2009 and
includes constructing five additional smaller tanks to eliminate a second reservoir a Marcy
and to provide additional storage a the southern reservoir area. Bonding for this unfunded
EPA mandate occurred in two separate bond issues. The first bonding of approximately $15
million occurred in 2006 and the second bonding completed in December 2008 was for $12.2
million. Other smaller projects were also included in these bond issues.

The final tank at the southern reservoir is scheduled for construction in the summer of 2012.
Thiswill compliment a tank constructed in 2003 resulting in removing the southern reservoir
from daily use. This additional tank will provide much needed capacity for the higher
elevations of the water system.

I InFebruary 2012, Standard and Poor’s Rating Services upgraded the Water Authority from A
to A+. The rating assigned to the Water Authority’s 2008A revenue bonds indicated a
“strong financial risk profile, with consistently strong debt service coverage and liquidity
position”. In addition, S&P noted the regional water system has a “very diverse customer
base’, and an “ample water capacity to meet demand”.

I Continued stress from increased operating costs, debt service costs to fund the construction
projects primarily to comply with the EPA’s covered storage mandate, and lost revenue from
unrealized expansion plans resulted in an average increase in water rates to customers of
2.0% for FY 2012. Significant operating cost increases included chemical costs and
maintenance supplies, employee health insurance benefits, workers compensation and the
annual state-mandated retirement payment. In addition, accumulated legal costs to defend
the water customers' right to draw water at maximum levels from the Hinckley Reservoir
also attributed to the increase.

1 For FY 2012, annual consumption decreased 9.2 million cubic feet (MCF) to 479 MCF. Thisis
fifth consecutive fiscal year that annual consumption has decreased. The top 3 service areas
based on consumption are as follows: City of Utica, 245 MCF or 51%; Town of New
Hartford, 68 MCF or 14%; and the Town of Marcy, 45 MCF or 9%. While annual consumption
decreased during the fiscal year, water sales increased $147,000 million to $19.0 million.
The marginal increase is attributed to the increase water rates of 2%.

i  Comparing budget to actual, water sales exceeded this forecast by $761,000 or 4.2%. In
addition, delinquency charges exceeded the budget by $134,000 or 18.6%. This large
increase primarily consisted of late penalties charged on delinquent account balances. Fees
and ancillary charges were in line with budget while Other Services fell short by $24,000 as
compared to budget. Overall operating revenue exceeded budget by $879,000.




MOHAWK VALLEY WATER AUTHORITY
MANAGEMENT S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS-CONTINUED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR FISCAL YEAR 2012

This section is intended to serve as an introduction to the MVWA'’s financial statements.
MVWA's financial statements are prepared on the accrual basis of accounting in accordance
with U.S. Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP) promulgated by the Government
Accounting Standards Board (GASB). The Water Authority is a single-purpose entity and
revenues are recognized when earned, not received. Expenses are recognized when incurred, not
when they are paid.

The financial statements are organized as follows:

The Statement of Net Assets presents information on all of MVWA'’s assets and liabilities, with
the difference between the two reported as “net assets’. Over time, increases or decreases in net
assets may serve as a useful indicator of the financial position of MVWA. The Statement of
Revenue, Expenses and Changes in Net Assets presents information showing how MVWA'’s
net assets changed during the most recent reporting period. All changes in net assets are reported
as soon as the underlying event giving rise to the change occurs, regardliess of the timing of
related cash flows. Thus, revenues and expenses are reported in this statement for some items
that will result in cash flows in prior or future periods (e.g., earned but unused vacation leave and
depreciation expense on capital assets). The Statement of Cash Flows presents information
depicting MVWA'’s cash flow activities for the reporting period ended and the effect that these
activities had on MVWA'’s cash and cash equivalent balances. The Notes to Financial
Statements present additional information that is essential to a full understanding of the data
provided in the financial statements. The notes to the financial statements can be found following
the financial statements section of this report.

Combined Statement of Net Assets

MVWA assets exceeded liabilities (net assets) by $34.4 million as March 31, 2012 as compared
to $31.6 million and $28.4 as of March 31, 2011 and 2010.
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MOHAWK VALLEY WATER AUTHORITY
MANAGEMENT S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS-CONTINUED

COMBINED STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS

FY 2012 FY 2011 FY 2010
ASSETS:
Current Assets 12,711,756 $ 11,136,442 $ 10,441,498
Noncurrent Assets:
Restricted Assets 15,491,980 17,486,631 22,832,722
Utility Plant, Net 74,672,018 73,936,016 68,895,838
Total Noncurrent Assets 90,193,998 91,422,647 91,728,560
Total Assets 102,875,754 102,559,089 102,170,058
LIABILITIES:
Current Liabilities 5,807,002 6,217,711 7,079,808
Noncurrent Liabilities 62,703,566 64,710,312 66,734,994
Total Liabilities 68,510,568 70,928,023 73,814,802
NET ASSETS:
Invested in Utility Plant, Net of
Related Debt 14,506,845 12,329,769 9,640,148
Restricted For:
Repair and | mprovement 652,870 621,715 611,772
Unspent Debt Proceeds:
Restricted for Capital Projects 2,766,952 3,829,810 8,506,163
Other Than Construction Proceeds 7,691,626 8,298,245 9,417,748
Unrestricted 8,746,893 6,551,527 179,425
TOTAL NET ASSETS 34,365,186 $ 31,631,066 $ 28,355,256

Assets

I Current assets represent operating, restricted and board-designated cash, receivables,

inventory, and prepaid expenses. Current assets increased by $1.6 million were attributed
mostly to unrestricted cash increase by $907,000, receivables by $266,000 and material
inventory of $377,000. Over half of the increase in unrestricted cash was caused by the
timing of payment to sinking funds-which was made just after the current fiscal year.
Accounts receivable increased due to the extended time for customers to make payments
from 20 days to 30 days and region’s downturn in the economy. Inventory increased as
result of bulk purchasing: which led to better pricing. Inventory is expected to be used
during the summer months. In addition, restricted cash collected from sewer and outside-
service-area water billings increased $85,000.

Non-current restricted assets represent trust funds that are subject to external restrictions as
stipulated under applicable bond resolutions. The major change was the use of $1.9 million
of these restricted funds for designated capital projects. Construction payouts included the
2008A and 2006A project funds to construct the Toby Road and Marcy reservoir tanks.

36



MOHAWK VALLEY WATER AUTHORITY

MANAGEMENT S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS-CONTINUED

Combined Statement of Net Assets-continued

Non-current utility plant assets consist of tangible, intangible, land, equipment less related
accumulated depreciation, and work-in-progress. The majority of fixed assets are devoted to
distribution, treatment plant, and water transmission & storage carried net of depreciation of
$23.5, $18.2 and $15.3 million, respectively. Capital projects in the amount of $7.2 million
were completed and another $14.4 million are in various stages of construction as part of an
aggressive multi-year capital plan to remediate system deficiencies and provide enhanced
transmission and distribution facilities. Two water tanks (Marcy, $4.0 million and Toby
Road, $8.5 million) account for the largest share of work-in-progress.

UTILITY PLANT ASSETS
FY 2012 FY 2011

Water Rights & Other Intangible Assets  $ 1,050,000 $ 1,050,000
Land 981,806 981,954
Water Transmission and Storage 17,371,369 10,977,567
Distribution 31,118,488 30,986,981
Vehicles & Maintenance Equipment 2,305,297 2,264,654
Office & Lab Equipment 2,151,869 2,025,646
Water Treatment Facilities 21,890,271 21,326,311
Work-in-Process 14,423,809 19,373,646

91,292,909 88,986,759
Less: Accumulated Depreciation (16,620,891) (15,050,743)
Net Utility Plant $ 74,672,018 $ 73936,016

The following major construction projects were completed during the year increasing the
Authority’ s utility assets:

0 Main replacements or extensions were completed at—
i Ridge Road, Utica $36,670
i Ferguson Road, Frankfort $94,902
o Construction of a 10 million gallon wire-wrapped tank at the Deerfield reservoir at a

cost of $6.4 million. This tank was necessary to remove the Deerfield reservoir from
daily operation and comply with new state and federal drinking water regulations.
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MANAGEMENT S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS-CONTINUED

Combined Statement of Net Assets-continued

o

As part of the maintenance of the treatment plant and other facilities, new roofs
replaced the original roof installed in 1993 on the maintenance facility at a cost of
$553,829.

An additional three phases (Phases IV-V1) of leak detection were completed system-
wide resulting in greater knowledge of system weakness and potential rehabilitation
in the future. The water service areais broken into three sections where the different
phases are performed. Due to the age of the infrastructure, leak detection is becoming
more prevalent and has become part of normal operations.

On-going capital projects include the following:

o

Consgtruction of a6 million gallon water tank on Toby Road in Marcy at a current cost
of $8.5 million;

Construction of a 3 million gallon water tank at the Marcy reservoir at a cost of $4.0
million;

The initial design of a tank and mains at the Oriskany business park at a current cost
of $357,000;

Through the use of a special directional-drilling process piping was installed under
the Erie Canal at a cost of $717,000;

Upgrade and additions to the existing SCADA system used to monitor water flows
and key infrastructure performance throughout the system at a current cost of
$138,000;

Pump station improvements system-wide at a current cost of $132,000;
Water quality improvements system-wide at a current cost of $246,000;
Main replacement on Andes Avenue in Utica at a cost of $93,000.

Additional information on the Water Authority’s utility plant can be found in Note 5 of this

report.
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MANAGEMENT S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS-CONTINUED

Combined Statement of Net Assets-continued

Liabilities

Current liabilities consist of accrued payments to suppliers and construction contractors,
amounts collected for the billing of sewer and non-service area water services on behalf of
several municipalities, and the current portions payable for accrued interest and principal on
outstanding bonds and a promissory note. MWV A had current ratios of 2.19, 1.79 and 1.47 at
March 31, 2012, 2011, and 2010 respectively. Current ratio implies there is sufficient assets
on hand to cover liabilitiesthat will come due in the ensuing year.

Ratio of Current Assets to Current Liabilities
FY 2012 FY 2011 FY2010
Current Assets  $ 12,711,756 $ 11,136,442 $ 10,441,498
Current Liabilities $ 5,807,002 $ 6,217,711 $ 7,079,808

Current Ratio 2.19 1.79 1.47

Noncurrent liabilities represent water revenue bonds acquired to finance the water system’'s
multi-year capital improvement plan, a promissory note payable to the City of Utica, a
component of the purchase of the water system in 1996 and the post employment benefit
other than pension accrual. As a general policy, MVWA prefers to finance projects by
bonding every two yearsin order to keep closing costs and other expenses to a minimum.
The largest change to noncurrent liabilities was the principal reduction of the Series 2001A
revenue bonds of $1.2 million. A net increase of $547,000 incurred to accrue for the
postemployment benefits other than pension liability in accordance with GASB 45.

Water Revenue Bonds

As of March 31, 2012, MVWA has seven water revenue bond series outstanding totaling
$58.7 million. The Series 1996B bonds, 2001A bonds and the 2001B bonds are all funded
through the New York State Drinking Water Revolving Fund administered by the
Environmental Facilities Corporation (EFC), a public benefit corporation of the State of New
York. The 2001A Series bonds are the result of an advanced refunding of the original 1996A
Series bonds used to purchase the water system from the City of Utica. In FY 2007, the
Water Authority issued $20,335,000 of revenue bonds to fund several large capital projects
and to partially advance refund portions of the 1999 and 2000 series bonds. The remaining
portions of the 1999 series bonds have been paid in full during FY 2012. During fiscal 2009,
anew bond issue was completed in the amount of $12.2 million. No new bonds were issued
during FY 2011 and FY 2012.
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Combined Statement of Net Assets-continued

Prior to FY 2006, annual debt service (principal and interest) was $3.2 million. The debt
service increased to $4.1 million and $4.3 million in FY 2007 and FY 2009, respectively. In
FY 2010, debt service increased to $5 million. During FY 2011 and FY 2012, EFC
refinanced state-backed bonds related to the series 2001A and 2001B bond issues. The
savings from these refinancing have been passed on to the Water Authority in the form of
increased subsidies. The resulting subsidies have reduced debt service by approximately
$200,000 to $4.8 million. Rates on these current debt issues range from 2.00% to 6.25%.

Water revenue bond series outstanding as of March 31, 2012 and 2011 follows:

Principal Principal
Water Revenue Serial Bonds OuBt;tlggg(ieng Ol{Btztlggg(ieng
March 31, 2012 March 31, 2011
19968 $ 160,000 | $ 320,000
1999 0 90,000
2000 4,788,720 5,048,720
2001A 14,240,000 15,585,000
2001B 1,915,000 2,035,000
2003 7,000,000 7,185,000
2006A 18,765,000 19,080,000
2008A 11,880,000 11,985,000
Total $ 58,748,720 | $ 61,328,720

Additional information on the Water Authority’s long-term debt can be found in Note 8 of this

report.
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MOHAWK VALLEY WATER AUTHORITY
MANAGEMENT S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS-CONTINUED

Annual debt service is the required amount of cash that is required each fiscal year to cover the
repayment of interest and principal on adebt. MVWA'’s requirement by each bond series
follows:

DEBT SERVICE REQUIREMENTS
FISCAL YEARS 2013-2037
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MOHAWK VALLEY WATER AUTHORITY

MANAGEMENT S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS-CONTINUED

Combined Statement of Net Assets-continued

Net Assets

MV WA assets exceeded liabilities (net assets) by $34.4 million, $31.6 million, $28.4 million as
March 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010, respectively. Net assets are divided into three main categories
of invested in utility plant, net of related debt; restricted and unrestricted net assets.

The largest net assets portion of the MVWA each year consists of its investment in utility
plant net of accumulated depreciation reduced by the related indebtedness outstanding used
to acquire such assets. For FY 2012, MVWA carried $74.7 million in utility plant net of
depreciation and related debt as compared to $73.9 million and $68.9 for FY 2011 and 2010,
respectively.

Restricted assets represents net assets that should be reported as restricted when constraints
placed on net assets use are externally imposed or imposed by law. For FY 2012, the vast
majority of MVWA's restricted assets are related to bond proceeds of $10.5 million as
compared to $12.1 million and $17.9 million for FY 2011 and 2010, respectively. A legally
restricted portion consists of $653,000 set-aside for the repair and improvement of the water
infrastructure as stipulated under the original General Bond Resolution as compared to
$622,000 and $612,000 for FY 2011 and 2010, respectively.

Unrestricted net assets are the residual component of net assets. It consists of net assets that
do not meet the definition of restricted or invested in capital assets, net of related debt. For
FY 2012, the Board of Directors has designated $3.8 million of the $8.7 million of
unrestricted net assets to indicate tentative plans for future financial commitments and
resource use as compared to $4.0 million and $3.5 million for FY 2011 and 2010,
respectively. The designed funds include amounts for debt service covenant and reserves for
certain repair, replacement, maintenance and operating reserves:

o $800,000 for debt service covenant is MVWA required amount of collected funds
that equates to additional 15% of the estimated aggregate debt service for each fiscal
year plus all remaining obligations including operating expenses, PILOT payments,
Finance Authority obligations, promissory note and debt service.

o $1.3 million for capital maintenance reserve was created during FY 2009 to fund the
annual maintenance of larger infrastructure assets in the water system. Amounts are
anticipated to be funded each year with the goa of annually paying for the
maintenance of these assets as opposed to bonding for the repairs over time.

0 $924,000 for Repair, Replacement and Renewal Reserve
0 $619,000 for Operating and Maintenance Reserve
0 $147,000 to fund specific Board of Directors projects.
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Changes in Revenue, Expenses and Changes in Net Assets

For FY 2012, operating revenues increased by $147,000 over the prior year. Operating expenses
are incurred for the purpose of producing revenue increased by $1.3 million as compared to the
prior year. Operating income shows the relationship between revenue earned and expenses
incurred was $6.7 million for FY 2012, also down $1.1 million from the prior year.
Nonoperating revenues and expenses, which are considered not directly related to operating
income, showed a reduction from the prior year of $564,000: leading to change of net assets of
$2.7 for FY 2012 as compared to $3.3 million and $2.7 million for FY 2011 and FY 2010,
respectively.

SUMMARY OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS
FY 2012 FY 2011 FY 2010

Operating Revenues $ 20429500 $ 20,282,694 $ 18,829,615
Operating Expenses 13,723,116 12,470,677 11,958,526
Operating Income 6,706,384 7,812,017 6,871,089
Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses)

Investment Income 225,341 286,169 411,998

Interest Expense (2,665,824) (2,965,973) (2,875,515)

PILOT Payments (1,445,725) (1,471,913) (1,510,885)

Other (86,056) (384,490) (205,911)
Total Nonoperating Expenses (3,972,264) (4,536,207) (4,180,314)
Change in Net Assets 2,734,120 3,275,810 2,690,775
Net Assets, Beginning of Y ear 31,631,066 28,355,256 25,664,481
Net Assets, End of Y ear $ 34365186 ¢ 31,631,066 ¢ 28,355,256

Operating Revenue

MVWA sets its rates annually in concurrence with the adoption of its annual operating and
capital budget. MVWA is required by its enabling legislation to set rates and fees sufficient to
cover all of its operating costs and 115% of the principal and interest on debt service used for
construction and remediation of the existing system. MVWA raised its rates over the years to
offset operating and capital expenses. A summary of the rate increases since the Authority began
setting rates and adopting budgets is as follows:
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Changes in Revenue, Expenses and Changes in Net Assets-continued

RATE HISTORY

Fiscal Year Insggse Fiscal Year InSi:se Fiscal Year Insieese
1998 5.50% 2003 6.00% 2008 8.30%
1999 0.00% 2004 9.50% 2009 7.10%
2000 8.00% 2005 5.00% 2010 5.60%
2001 5.00% 2006 8.74% 2011 7.90%
2002 5.40% 2007 13.50% 2012 2.00%

Water Sales, Consumption and Production

Operating revenues includes water sales and other operating revenue (delinquency charges, fees
and ancillary charges and other service revenue).

OPERATING REVENUES

Water Sales FY 2012 FY 2011 FY2010
Quarterly Customers $ 14,170,697 $ 14,648,088 $ 13,239,062
Monthly Customers 4,852,581 4,207,615 4,103,648
Other Operating Revenue 1,406,222 1,426,991 1,486,905
Total Operating Revenues $ 20,429,500 20,282,694 ¢ 18,829,615
Water sales increased slightly by WATER SALES

$168,000 or 1% compared to the

previous year was mostly attributed 20,000,000

to the two percent increase in water 18,000,000

rates for FY 2012. Overall water B

consumption decreased from the 12,000,000

previous year by 9.2 million cubic 10,000,000

feet (68.9 million gallons) to 480 000000

MCF (3.6 billion gallons) for the 4,000,000

fiscal year. This is an average of B . = ' m wm m w =
1.3 million cubic feet (9.8 million 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012
gallons) consumed per day which is

glightly less than the previous year.




MOHAWK VALLEY WATER AUTHORITY
MANAGEMENT S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS-CONTINUED

Changes in Revenue, Expenses and Changes in Net Assets-continued

As compared to the prior fiscal year, both quarterly and monthly customers consumption
decreased; yet quarterly customers were down a greater portion at 2.7% as compared to monthly
customers who were down 0.6%. Consumption decrease can be explained by the economic
downturn, conservation measures, and more efficient manufacturing processes.

Water production at the treatment plant increased greatly for the FY 2012 by 97 million cubic
feet (725 million gallons) to a high level of 948 million cubic feet (7 billion gallons). Thisisan
average of approximately 2.6 million cubic feet (19.4 million gallons) per day. This significant
increase in production was response to the small increase of 2 million cubic feet of production in
FY 2011 and that additional water production was required as new tanks were being brought on
line.

Delinquent Charges

Other operating revenue is comprised of delinquency, fees and other service charges.
Delinquency charges account for over 60% of these fees and increased slightly from the prior
year. Penalties, tampering fees
and shut-off and turn-on fees DELIQUENCY CHARGES
were in line with the previous
year. Enforcement of delinquent

accounts has remained constant, O
resulting in  a  continued $00,000
reduction in the dollar threshold 700,000
used to determine further S
review and more aggressive 400,000
collection procedures. 300,000
Accounts that are grosdy O
overdue or a high dollar value o . v ‘
have b%n ggnlflcantly reduced 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012

over the past 10 years. Thisisa
further indication of the success in collecting on delinquent accounts. The collection of past due
accounts has been effective by aggressively posting notices on properties and terminating water
service on accounts that remained unpaid. The results have been positive with greater collection
and less delinquencies.
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Changes in Revenue, Expenses and Changes in Net Assets-continued

Ancillary Fees

FEES AND ANCILLARY CHARGES

Ancillary-type fees continued to
experience an overall small
decrease of during FY 2012. The 300,000
majority of the decrease occurred
as aresult of less charges for
hydrant permit fees lines and 2,000
termination of service charges. &bt
These decreases were offset by
increases to meter line charges and
frozen and lost meter charges. 50,000
permits, service terminations.

250,000

100,000

0

2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012

Operating Expenses

The MVWA expenses are annually budgeted and tracked by function. MVWA operations are
divided into: Administration, Finance & Accounting, Customer Service, Information
Technology, Engineering, Capital Projects, Water Distribution, Water Quality, Treatment, and
System Repair & Maintenance.

Operating expenses increased, before amortization and depreciation, by $1.05 million to $11.8
million compared to the prior year. Depreciation and amortization increased by $203,000 as
fixed assets were brought online and increasing the non-cash expense from the prior year.

OPERATING EXPENSES

FY 2012 FY 2011 FY 2010
Operating Expenses $ 11,828957 $ 10,779,838 $ 10,259,244
Depreciation and Amortization 1,894,161 1,690,839 1,699,282
Total Operating Expenses $ 13723118 $ 12,470,677 $ 11,958,526
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Changes in Revenue, Expenses and Changes in Net Assets-continued

I Operating expenses experienced notable changes compared to the previous year in the
following areas:

o

MVWA employees are members of one of two unions, with the exception of certain
employees titles. The International Brotherhood of Teamsters, Local Union 182,
represents the office staff, operations staff, field labor staff, and foremen. The
Management Employees Association represents the remainder of employees. Contract
negotiations with the International Brotherhood of Teamsters Local Union 182 have
been completed successfully. The effective date of the agreement was retroactive to
April 10, 2010 and it is scheduled to expire on March 31, 2013. Wage adjustments were
made in the fiscal year 2012. The Management Employees Association’'s (MEA)
present contract expired on March 30, 2010. MVWA has met with the MEA to
commence contract negotiations which are currently underway. Overall payroll
recorded an increase of $193,000 for fiscal year 2012 primarily due to the filling of
previous open positions and retro payment. Each fiscal year, labor costs of
management and staff time on specific projects is allocated to capital projects. The
allocation for FY 2012 was $430,000 as compared to $500,000 for FY 2011.

Employee benefits consist mostly of health and dental insurance and participation in the
New York State retirement system. Health & dental insurance premiums less employee
payroll contribution continued to rise by 5% over the previous year to $1,250,000.
Also, state-mandated retirement contributions increased 29% compared to the previous
year to $666,000. Employer required workers compensation insurance increased
$31,000 during the year. Medical insurance for retirees increased by 20% over the
previous year to $160,000.

Legal expenses related to appeals following the Judge's decision against Erie
Hydropower, LLC. In addition, the Water Authority has also appealed one part of the
Judge’ s decision related to the maximum allowable daily draws. Since fiscal year 2005,
the Water Authority has spent over $1.3 million litigating this suit

The purchase of granulated activated carbon (GAC) at $500,000 most notably increased
operating expenses. GAC is a new substance used in the treatment process to comply
with new standards promulgated for fiscal year 2012.

Paving cost decreased by $149,000 in comparison to the prior year. During the prior
year a major break on Oriskany Boulevard in Utica and restoration of the surface cost
to MVWA caused the prior fiscal year amounts to be out of line with current fiscal
year.

Additional meters and hydrants were installed causing $92,000 increase in operating
costs. These costs are part of a multi-year plan of meter replacements.

Vehicle maintenance and repair was up as compared to the prior year by $38,000 as
fleet is getting older.
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MANAGEMENT S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS-CONTINUED

Changes in Revenue, Expenses and Changes in Net Assets-continued

Nonoperating Revenues and Expenses
MV WA nonoperating revenues expenses are annually budgeted and tracked by category.

NONOPERATING REVENUES AND EXPENSES

FY 2012 FY 2011 FY 2010
Investment Income $ 225341 $ 286,169 $ 411,998
Interest Expense (2,665,824) (2,965,973) (2,875,515)
PILOT Payments (1,445,725) (1,471,913) (1,510,885)
Other (86,056) (384,490) (205,911)
Total Nonoperating Expenses $ (3972264) $ (4536207) ¢ (4,180,314)

I Nonoperating revenue and expenses experienced changes compared to the previous year in
the following areas:

0 Investment income is earned from operating accounts and trust funds. These categories
experienced decreases in earnings of $60,000 as market yields continue to plummet.

0 Interest expense includes interest on the City of Utica' s promissory note, revenue bonds
and administrative fees. The reduction of interest of $300,000 on revenue bonds was
attributed to the systematic pay down of principal balance and refunding of the 2001A

bonds.
o0 MVWA made required transfers as established under the Act to make specified

payments in lieu of taxes (PILOT’s) to the City of Utica, Oneida County, impacted
school districts (on a declining schedule).

o Other nonoperating revenues and expenses increased was attributed mainly to $292,000
selling investments in the 2001A reserve fund as part of the refunding of debt.
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Changes in Revenue, Expenses and Changes in Net Assets-continued

SUMMARY OF CASH FLOW ACTIVITIES

FY 2012 FY 2011 FY 2010

Cash Flows From:

Operating Activities $ 7435782 $ 8,729,097 $ 6,189,820
Non-Capital Financing Activities (1,362,923) (1,399,419) (1,327,864)
Investing Activities 1,891,335 5,242,775 9,005,585
Capital & Financing Activities (6,971,839) (11,567,214) (12,049,060)
Net (Decrease) Increase in Cash 992,355 1,005,239 1,818,481
Cash, Beginning of Y ear 8,130,189 7,124,950 5,306,469
Cash, End of Year $ 9,122,544 ¢ 8,130,189 ¢ 7,124,950

The Authority’ s available cash increased $1 million during fiscal year 2012, marking the seventh
such increase in cash in the last eight years. Thisincrease is the result of areduction in operating
expenses and/or a postponement of spending resulting in an increase in cash flow from operating
activities. Trust fund amounts not used for capital projects during the year were invested in a
wide-array of certificates of deposits with varying maturities. The maturity of these certificates
was staggered to allow adequate trust fund money available for capital projects. As a result,
capital projects were completed creating new system assets put into service throughout the year.
These infrastructure assets consisted primarily of water tanks within the service area.

The $9.1 million cash at fiscal year-end consists of $6.9 million available for unrestricted
operations, $1.3 million set aside to pay municipalities for sewer and outside water collections,
$767,000 that is Board Designated to fund the required bond covenant reserve and $148,000 of
Board Designated funds from the Proceeds From Timber Sales.
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OUTLOOK FOR FISCAL 2013

Infrastructure

Capital construction and customer service are the prevailing themes the Water Authority will be
projecting into fiscal year 2013. The second phase of water tank construction began in 2009 and
has continued over the last three years. The Deerfield tank has been placed on-line and the two
additional tanks in Marcy, NY (Marcy and Toby Road tanks) are also complete and will be
placed on-line in the near future. Bonding is currently under way to fund the construction of an
additional tank at the southern reservoir area to provide increased storage in this zone. A tank at
southern reservoir was constructed in 2003 enabling the Water Authority the ability to take the
reservoirs in this are off-line. All reservoirs throughout the water service area have been taken
off-line ahead of the new water rules promulgated for fiscal year 2012.

An additional projected in the review stages over the last several years has taken a large step
forward and will be the majority of the anticipated bonding. An Automated Meter Infrastructure
(AMI) system, estimated at $5.3 million, will be purchased and place throughout the water
service area over the next two to three years. The infrastructure consists of data collection
hardware placed throughout the service area, installing or retro-fitting 38,000 meters within the
system, and software that will enable the collection of this data for billing, review and reporting
to customers and other stakeholders of the water system.

Debt service related to this new bonding will be phased in over atwo year period. The first half
of debt service was incorporated into the fiscal 2013 budget. The remaining portion will be
added to the fiscal 2014 budget.

Litigation

Litigation continues for the Water Authority over its rights to withdraw water unfettered from the
Hinckley Reservoir. In May of 2009, the Oneida County Supreme Court judge rendered his
decision concerning the Water Authority’s water rights from Hinckley reservoir. The Court
partially granted the Water Authority a summary judgment against New Y ork State and the NY S
Canal Corporation finding the state was barred against enforcing the compensation provisions of
the 1917 agreement; however, the Court limited the extent of the State’'s waiver to the historic
maximum amount of water withdrawn, which it determined was 35 cubic feet per second (cfs).
All parties appealed the decision. The Water Authority appealed the judge’ s decision concerning
the limit imposed on water withdrawal.

On October 18, 2010, the Appellate Division issued a decision on the appeals affirming the
court’s decision to grant summary judgment in the Water Authority’s favor against Erie
Hydropower and dismissal of Erie Hydropower’s counterclaims. The Appellate Division
modified the Court’s decision with respect to limiting the Water Authority’ s withdrawal to 35 cfs
on the basis of incomplete evidence.

The Water Authority’s final claim that it can withdraw water from Hinckley Reservoir free from
compensation obligation to the State and the State’s counterclaim that the Water Authority is
obligated to comply with the 1917 agreement, will be tried before the Oneida County Supreme
Court. The datefor trial has not been determined.
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MOHAWK VALLEY WATER AUTHORITY
MANAGEMENT S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS-CONTINUED

OUTLOOK FOR FISCAL 2013--continued

Financial Operations

For fiscal year 2013, overall operating costs are budgeted to remain relatively the same
compared to the previous year. A 2.0% water rate increase was imposed following a 2.0% water
rate increase in the previous year. Water consumption is projected to remain relatively constant
or decrease up to 2.0%. For fiscal year 2012, consumption recorded a drop of 9 million cubic
feet or a 1.8% reduction to 489 million cubic feet. However, rates have been set to wesather this
potential reduction. Staff will monitor consumption on a monthly basis reporting to the Board as
part of their monthly financial reporting.

The use of granulated activated carbon (GAC) as part of the filtration process has been
incorporated into the budget. The annual cost is estimated between $800,000 and $1 million.
Thiswill be the second year of GAC use at the treatment plant.

Operating and non-operating cost increases are anticipated in several areas that will put pressure
on existing water rates. This includes increased costs for PILOT payments, negotiated salary
adjustments, employee retirement, chemical costs at the filtration plant, and costs for customers’
use of credit cards and alternative payment options. Also, there have been reductions in revenue
items including outside lab services, and several customer fees. This is offset by areduction in
anticipated litigation expenses, health insurance, vehicle and operating equipment, water quality
supplies and debt service. The overall result of an intensive budget formulation process resulted
in a decrease of $113,000 to operating costs.

The anticipated issuing of new bonds has been the largest overall increase and stress on the
budget. One-half of the debt service has been incorporated in the fiscal 2013 budget with the
remaining portion schedule for the fiscal 2014 budget.

The following changes in budgeted operating and non-operating costs consist of:
1. Increase in cash carried forward of $182,000 to $732,000;
Reduction in legal fees of $80,000;

Increase in customer use of credit cards and other payment services of $70,000;
Retirement costs will increase $198,000, but prior year budget had already planned increase;

a b~ w N

Decreases in health insurance of $140,000 due to anticipated change in plan for
bargaining groups;

Staff reduction of approximately $155,000;

Timber harvest revenue of approximately $100,000;

Chemical increases at the treatment plant of approximately $138,000;
One-half of debt service on new bond issue of $372,000;

10. Combining other operating expenses resulted in $116,000 in savings.

© ®o® N o
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MOHAWK VALLEY WATER AUTHORITY
MANAGEMENT S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS-CONTINUED

OUTLOOK FOR FISCAL 2013--continued

The 2013 budget was prepared using the following assumptions. water consumption will
experience a mild drop of approximately 2.0%; overall operations will remain stable with
operating costs remaining consistent with the prior year. New water sales remain stagnant as
substantial growth is not anticipated. Other fees and charges are anticipated to generate revenue
consistent with the prior year. In addition, there will be increased chemical costs due to unit cost
increases and the potential for fluctuated costs associated with adding granulated activated
carbon (GAC) to the treatment process.

Management of the Water Authority does not assert these projections as being factual; however,
estimates always have to be made when devising a budget.

CREDIT RATINGS

The Water Authority is currently the recipient of favorable credit ratings from Standard and
Poor’ s Ratings Services and Moody’ s I nvestors Service.

In February 2012, Standard and Poor’ s Rating Services upgraded the Water Authority from A to
A+. The rating assigned to the Water Authority’s 2008A revenue bonds indicated a “strong
financial risk profile, with consistently strong debt service coverage and liquidity position”. In
addition, S&P noted the regional water system has a “very diverse customer base’, and an
“ample water capacity to meet demand”.

Moody’s Investors Service revised their rating scale during 2010 resulting in a change to the
Water Authority’s rating from an Az to anA;. The A; rating is considered “ upper-medium grade
and the obligations are subject to low credit risk”. Moody’s Investors Service last reviewed the
Water Authority’s bond rating in December of 2008. The Water Authority issues revenue bonds
subject to its General Revenue Bond (Master) Resolution dated December 1, 1996 and
Supplemental Resolutions issued with and specific to each subsequent revenue bond issue.

Under the Authority’s Master Bond Resolution, it is required to maintain a debt service reserve
egual to 115% of the Authority’s aggregate debt service and a repair and replacement reserve of
$500,000. The Authority currently maintains these reserves sufficient to comply with the
respective covenants.

REQUEST FOR INFORMATION

This report is designed to provide a general overview of the Mohawk Valley Water Authority’s
finances for all those interested. Questions concerning any of the information provided in this
report or requests for additional information should be addressed in writing to the Executive
Director, Mohawk Valley Water Authority, One Kennedy Plaza, Utica, New York 13502 or
through our web site www.mvwa.us.
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AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

COMBINED STATEMENTS OF NET ASSETS
March 31, 2012 and 2011

ASSETS
2012 2011
CURRENT ASSETS
Cash:
Unrestri cted/ Undesi gnated $ 6,915,326 $ 6,007,623
Board Designated Funds:
Debt Covenant Reserve 766,869 766,869
Proceeds From Timber Sales 147,638 147,638
Sewer Charges Collected 1,292,711 1,208,059
Billed Water Receivables, Net of Allowance of
$412,416 in 2012 and $406,445 in 2011 1,739,657 1,455,093
Grants Receivable 13,800 40,000
Lab Fees Receivable 717 332
Interest Receivable 33,900 23,732
Miscellaneous Receivables 7,655 10,905
Material s Inventory 648,452 271,208
Prepaid Expenses 1,145,031 1,204,983
Total Current Assets 12,711,756 11,136,442
NONCURRENT ASSETS
Restricted Assets:
Serial Bond Funds 10,328,729 11,998,225
Repair and Improvement Fund 3,511,286 3,733,143
Promissory Note Fund 129,849 129,830
Net Restricted Funds 13,969,864 15,861,198
Unamortized Bond Expense 1,522,116 1,625,433
Total Restricted Assets 15,491,980 17,486,631
Utility Plant:
Water Rights & Other Intangible Assets 1,050,000 1,050,000
Land 981,806 981,954
Water Transmission and Storage 17,371,369 10,977,567
Treatment 21,890,271 21,326,311
Distribution 31,118,488 30,986,981
Office & Lab Equipment 2,151,869 2,025,646
Vehicles & Maintenance Equi pment 2,305,297 2,264,654
Work in Process 14,423,809 19,373,646
Accumul ated Depreciation (16,620,891) (15,050,743)
Net Utility Plant 74,672,018 73,936,016
Total Noncurrent Assets 90,163,998 91,422,647
Total Assets $ 102,875,754 $ 102,559,089

See notesto combined financial statements.
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MOHAWK VALLEY WATER AUTHORITY

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

2012 2011
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Accourts Payable $ 312,526 $ 351,309
Construction Contracts (Includes retai nages of
$62,699 in 2012 and $460,860 in 2011) 108,996 477,038
Accrued Liabilities 182,673 300,702
Lease Payable 28,365 14,496
Accrued Interest 1,010,327 1,094,321
Compensated Absences 268,000 268,000
Sewer Service Collections Due to Municipalities 1,292,711 1,208,059
Current Portion of Promissory Note 115,101 108,704
Current Portion of Revenue Bonds Payabl e, Net of Premi unvDiscount
of $181,697 in 2012 and $184,918 in 2011 2,488,303 2,395,082
Total Current Liabilities 5,807,002 6,217,711
NONCURRENT LIABILITIES
Revenue Bonds:
Series 2008A Bonds, Net of Discount 11,568,591 11,676,438
of $191,409 in 2012 and $203,562 in 2011
Series 2006A Bonds, Net of Premium and Deferred
Amount of $408,772 in 2012 and $426,545in 2011 17,936,228 18,338,455
Series 2003 Bonds, Net of Discount of
$154,198 in 2012 and $161,659 in 2011 6,655,802 6,838,341
Series 2001A Bonds, Net of Discount of
$1,116,224 in 2012 and $1,261,819in 2011 11,743,776 12,978,181
Series 2001B Bonds 1,790,000 1,915,000
2000 Serial and Capital Appreciation Bonds, Premium of
$22,682in 2012 and $23,966 in 2011 4,536,402 4,812,686
Series 1996B Bonds 0 160,000
Lease Payable 56,333 20,332
Compensated Absences 135,150 122,198
Postempl oyment Benefits Other Than Pension 2,183,213 1,635,509
Promissory Note to City of Utica 6,098,071 6,213,172
Total Noncurrent Liabilities 62,703,566 64,710,312
Total Liabilities 68,510,568 70,928,023
NET ASSETS
Invested In Capital Assets, Net of Related Debt 14,506,845 12,329,769
Restricted For:
Repair and Improvement 652,870 621,715
Unspent Debt Proceeds, Restricted for Capital Projects 2,766,952 3,829,810
Unspent Debt Proceeds, Other than Capital Construction 7,691,626 8,298,245
Unrestricted 8,746,893 6,551,527
Total Net Assets $ 34,365,186 $ 31,631,066

See notesto combined financial statements.
54



MOHAWK VALLEY WATER AUTHORITY

COMBINED STATEMENTS OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET
ASSETS
Y ears Ended March 31, 2012 and 2011

2012 2011
OPERATING REVENUE
Metered Water Sales $ 19,023,278 $ 18,855,703
Delinguency Charges 854,927 843,693
Fees and Ancillary Charges 218,970 229,040
Other Services 332,325 354,258
Total Operating Revenue 20,429,500 20,282,694
OPERATING EXPENSES
Administrative 647,543 881,765
Finance & Accounting 989,175 882,848
Customer Service 367,778 431,190
Engineering 498,373 385,479
Water Distribution 314,460 322,426
Informati on Technol ogy 656,214 604,205
Water Quality Maintenance 703,536 738,464
Treatment 2,386,367 1,592,493
System Repair & Maintenance 3,846,903 3,538,455
General Services 1,418,606 1,402,513
Amortization of Bond Expenses 288,235 285,184
Depreciation 1,605,926 1,405,655
Total Operating Expenses 13,723,116 12,470,677
OPERATING INCOME 6,706,384 7,812,017
NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
Investment Income 225,341 286,169
Interest Expense (2,665,824) (2,965,973)
PILOT Payments (1,445,725) (1,471,913)
Independent Lab Services, Net 88,214 63,090
Realized Gair/ (Loss) on Investments 292,476 (58,613)
Post Employment Health Benefits (547,704) (466,665)
Other Income, Net 80,958 77,698
Total Nonoperating Expenses (3,972,264) (4,536,207)
INCOME BEFORE CAPITAL CONTRIBUTIONS 2,734,120 3,275,810
CAPITAL CONTRIBUTIONS 0 0
Increase in Net Assets 2,734,120 3,275,810
NET ASSETS
Beginning of Year 31,631,066 28,355,256
End of Year $ 34,365,186 $ 31,631,066

See notesto combined financial statements.
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MOHAWK VALLEY WATER AUTHORITY

COMBINED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
Y ears Ended March 31, 2012 and 2011

2012 2011
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Recei pts from Customers $ 19,681,547 19,720,705
Payments to Suppliers (8,373,307) (7,554,515)
Payments to Empl oyees (4,501,114) (4,395,339)
Other Receipts 628,656 958,246
Net Cash Provided By Operating Activities 7,435,782 8,729,097
CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Payments to Other Governments (1,362,923) (1,399,419)
Net Cash Used In Noncapital Financing Activities (1,362,923) (1,399,419)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from Sale of Investments and Maturities
of Investment Securities 1,891,335 5,242,775
Net Cash Provided By Investing Activities 1,891,335 5,242,775
CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND
RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Acquisition and Construction of Capital Assets (2,306,150) (6,458,389)
Other Nonoperating Revenue and Expense, net 939,828 714,486
Principal Payments on Long-Term Bonds (2,580,000) (2,405,000)
Principal Payments on Promissory Note (108,704) (102,662)
Capital Contributions 443,200 466,968
Transfers Out for Capital Purposes (750,000) (697,203)
Interest Paid (2,610,013) (3,085,414)
Net Cash Used In Capital and
Related Financing Activities (6,971,839) (11,567,214)
Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash 992,355 1,005,239
Cash, Beginning of Year 8,130,189 7,124,950
Cash, End of Year $ 9,122,544 8,130,189

See notesto combined financial statements.
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MOHAWK VALLEY WATER AUTHORITY

COMBINED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS-CONTINUED

Y ears Ended March 31, 2012 and 2011

RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME TO NET CASH

PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Operating Income
Adjustments to Reconcile Operating Income to
Net Cash Provided By Operating Activities:
Depreciation
Amorti zation of Bond Expenses
Disposition of Assets
(Increase) Decrease in Operating Assets:
Billed Water Receivables & Other Receivables
Materia s Inventory
Prepaid Expenses
Increase (Decrease) in Operating Liabilities:
Accounts Payable
Accrued Liabilities
Compensated Absences

Net Cash Provided By Operating Activities

NONCASH CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Disposition of Assets
Change in Fair Va ue of Investments

Post Employment Benefits Other than Pension

2012 2011

$ 6706384  $ 7,812,017
1,646,323 1,481,151

288,235 285,184
(76,175) (62,942)

(265,667) 7,743
(377,244) (102,184)

59,952 404,736
(406,825) (916,418)
(152,153) (172,297)

12,952 (7,893)

$ 7435782 $ 8,729,097
$ (76,452)  $ (62,943)
$ 202476 $ (58,613)
$ 547,704  $ 466,665

See notesto combined financial statements.
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MOHAWK VALLEY WATER AUTHORITY

NOTES TO COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
March 31, 2012 and 2011

NOTE 1 —SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The financial statements of the Mohawk Valley Water Authority (hereafter referred to asthe
“Water Authority”) have been prepared in conformity with generally accepted accounting
principles (GAAP) as applied to governmental units. The accounts are maintained substantially
in accordance with the Uniform System of Accounts for Water Utilities. The Governmental
Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the accepted standard-setting body for establishing
governmental accounting and financial reporting principles.

On October 23, 2002, the Upper Mohawk Valley Regional Water Board filed and subsequently
received a“ Certificate of Amendment of Assumed Name”, from the State of New York’s
Department of State, Division of Corporations changing the name of the public benefit corporation
to the “Mohawk Valley Water Authority”. Essentialy, the public utility will be “doing business
as’ - (dba) Mohawk Valley Water Authority.

Included in the Water Authority reporting entity is a blended component unit, the Upper
Mohawk Valley Regional Water Finance Authority (hereafter referred to asthe “Finance
Authority”). The reason for itsinclusion in the Water Authority is more fully described in Note
1, Reporting Entity.

The more significant accounting policies of the Water Authority are described below.
Introduction

The Water Authority and the Finance Authority were created on August 2, 1994 pursuant to Title
10 and Title 10-A, respectively, of Article 5, 81226.e and 81226.c, of the Public Authorities Law
of the State of New Y ork.

The Water Authority is a corporate municipal instrument of the State of New Y ork consisting of
twelve appointed Board members responsible for the overall operations of the water system.

The Finance Authority is a public benefit corporation of the State of New Y ork consisting of five
members primarily responsible for financing projects of the Water Authority through issuance of
debt and subsequent payment of the debt.

Board members for both the Water Authority and Finance Authority are appointed pursuant to the
enabling legislation.

On December 19, 1996, the Finance Authority issued bonds for the benefit of the Water
Authority, to enable purchase of the assets, net of liabilities, of the public water system from the
City of Utica. The Water Authority began operation of the public water system on December 19,
1996.
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MOHAWK VALLEY WATER AUTHORITY

NOTES TO COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
March 31, 2012 and 2011

NOTE 1 —SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES —CONTINUED

The regional water system includes facilities within the following jurisdictions:

Villages of: Towns of: Cities of:
Clark Mills Deerfield Utica
Holland Patent Frankfort
New Hartford Kirkland
New York Mills Marcy
Oriskany New Hartford
Whitesboro Schuyler
Yorkville Trenton
Whitestown

The Water Authority sells, on abulk basis, to the Tilden Manors development located in the
Town of Westmoreland.

Currently there are approximately 38,000 residential and 1,000 commercial customers. Total
population served by the water system is estimated in the range of 120,000 to 130,000 customers.
The average daily production for the current fiscal year is 17.4 million gallons per day (MGD),
the same average daily production for the previous year.

Hinckley Reservoir serves asthe source of water for the system. The reservoir is located
approximately 18 miles north of the City of Utica. The 25 billion gallon reservoir is a multi-use
facility owned by the State of New York. In addition to use by the Mohawk Valley Water
Authority, the New Y ork Power Authority and the Canal Corporation’s Barge Canal usethe
reservoir as awater supply for power generation, flood control, and recreation. The New Y ork
State Power Authority controls regulation of the water level and discharge at the

Hinckley Reservoir. The Jarvis Hydroelectric Plant at Hinckley generates power for the
surrounding community. The reservoir watershed area covers 373 square miles in the southerly
areas of the Adirondack Mountains, most of which lies within the Adirondack Park region. The
watershed is mostly rural and undeveloped forest. Two main highways, NY S Route 8 and Route
365, pass through the watershed.

The water system transmission and distribution mainstotal 42.5 miles and 558.9 miles,
respectively.
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MOHAWK VALLEY WATER AUTHORITY

NOTES TO COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
March 31, 2012 and 2011

NOTE 1 —SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES —CONTINUED

Reporting Entity

The basic financial statements include the primary entity, the Water Authority, as well as a blended
component unit, the Finance Authority, determined to be includable in the Water Authority's
financial reporting entity in accordance with GASB Statement No. 14.

The decision to include a potential component unit in the Water Authority's reporting entity is
based on several criteria set forth in GASB Statement No. 14, including legal standing, fiscal
dependency, and financial accountability. Based on the application of these criteria, the following
isabrief review of the criteria used to determine the Water Authority's reporting entity.

Blended Presentation of Component Unit

Blended component units, although legally separate entities are, in substance, part of the
government's operations. The following is a brief description of the blended component unit
included in the primary government:

Upper Mohawk Valley Regional Water Finance Authority

On August 2, 1994, date legislation created the Upper Mohawk Valley Regional Water Finance
Authority (“Finance Authority”), under provisions of 81226.c of the Public Authorities law of the
State of New York. The Finance Authority consists of five Board members including a
chairperson, avice-chair and atreasurer. On December 19, 1996, the Finance Authority issued
revenue bonds in the amount of $28,300,000, with varying interest rates. The proceeds of this
issue were designated for the operation, expansion and improvement of the water system, in
compliance with sate sandards. These bonds were subsequently defeased through an advanced
refunding with the issuance of the 2001A series bonds.

Among the powers given to the Finance Authority is the ability to borrow money and issue
negotiable or non-negotiable notes, bonds or other obligations for the acquisition, renovation and
improvement to the regional water system. The Finance Authority may also apply for licenses,
permits and gpproval of plans associated with the acquisition, renovation and improvement of the
regional water system. Inthe process of borrowing funds to improve facilities, professional
consultants may be retained to offer technical services and advice for the purpose and benefit of
acquiring or improving the regional water system.
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MOHAWK VALLEY WATER AUTHORITY

NOTES TO COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
March 31, 2012 and 2011

NOTE 1 —SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES —CONTINUED

Upper Mohawk Valley Regional Finance Authority —continued

The Finance Authority has entered into an agreement with the Water Authority to make payments
for the debt service required by these bonds. The Water Authority is also required to make
paymentsto the Finance Authority for PILOT paymentsto certain municipalities and school
districts, and to make funds available for the Finance Authority to make payments on the
promissory note owed to the City of Utica and to fund the Repair and Improvement Fund. The
obligation to make these payments is a general obligation to which its full faith and credit are
pledged.

In consideration for operating the regional water system and the financing of capital projects from
time to time, the Water Authority leases all itsrights, title and interest of the regional water system
and capital projectsto the Finance Authority under terms and conditions of the original financing
agreement. Inturn, the Financing Authority appointsthe Water Authority asthe exclusive operator
of theregional water system.

The Finance Authority is considered a component unit since the Water Authority is obligated to
pay debt service, PILOT payments, and fund other accounts of the Finance Authority. Thus, the
Finance Authority is “fiscally dependent” upon the Water Authority to establish and collect rates
and fees necessary to pay these debts. Further, the Finance Authority is "blended" with the Water
Authority in the combined financial statements because the Finance Authority exists solely to
provide services that predominantly benefit the Water Authority.

All significant intercompany accounts and transactions are eliminated.
Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting and Financial Statement Presentation

The activities of the Water Authority are similar to those often found in the private sector
(proprietary-type accounting). The measurement focusis upon determination of net income,
financial position, and cash flows.

Proprietary-type accounting records transactions on a cost of services or economic resources
measurement focus. This means all assets and liabilities, whether current or non-current,
associated with this activity are included on the balance sheet. The equity consists of net assets
and contributed capital, if any. Proprietary operating statements present increases (revenues) and
decreases (expenses) in total net assets.
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MOHAWK VALLEY WATER AUTHORITY

NOTES TO COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
March 31, 2012 and 2011

NOTE 1 —SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES —CONTINUED

Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting and Financial Statement Presentation-continued

Basis of accounting refers to when revenues, expenses, transfers and the related assets and
liabilities are recognized and reported in the financial statements. Specifically, it relatesto the
timing of the measurements made regardless of the nature of the measurement.

The Water Authority uses the accrual basis of accounting, whereby revenues are recognized
when earned and expenses are recorded when incurred. Proprietary-type accounting also
distinguishes operating revenues and expenses from non-operating items. Operating revenues
and expenses generally result from providing water services and producing potable water for the
service area in connection with the Water Authority’ s principle ongoing operations. The
principal operating revenues of the Water Authority are charges to customers to provide potable
water service. Other ancillary fees and services related to providing water are also recognized as
operating revenues. Operating expenses include the cost of service, administration and
depreciation of capital assets. All revenues and expenses not meeting these definitions are
reported as non-operating revenues and expenses.

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the Water Authority’s
policy to use restricted resources first, then unrestricted resources as they are needed.

Private-sector standards of accounting and financial reporting issued prior to December 1, 1989,
generally are followed in preparing the financial statements to the extent that those standards do
not conflict with or contradict guidance of the Governmental Accounting Standards Board. Where
reasonable and practical, the Water Authority has elected not to follow subsequent private-sector
guidance.

Effective March 31, 2009, the Authority adopted GASB Statement No. 45, Accounting and
Financial Reporting by Employers for Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions. This
Statement establishes standards for reporting the liability for non-pension postemployment
benefits, primarily health care premiums for retirees.

During fiscal year 2011, the Authority adopted Governmental Accounting Standards Board
Statement No. 51, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Intangible Assets and Statement No.
53, Financial Reporting of Derivative Instruments. Intangible assets include easements, water
rights, timber rights, patents, trademarks, and computer software. The adoption of both GASB
Statement No. 51 and Statement No. 53 did not have an impact on the Authority’s financial
statements.
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MOHAWK VALLEY WATER AUTHORITY

NOTES TO COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
March 31, 2012 and 2011

NOTE 1 —SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES —CONTINUED

Budgets and Budgetary Accounting

The annual budget is the financial plan for the operation of the Water Authority and Finance
Authority. The Board has adopted a cash-basis format for developing annual budgets. Large
variances between budget figures and actual amounts can often be attributed to the recording of
actual amounts on the accrual basis of accounting and the cash basis reporting used for budget
purposes.

Vacation Leave, Sick Leave, and Compensatory Absences

Water Authority employees are granted vacation and sick leave and earn compensatory absencesin
varying amounts. 1nthe event of termination or upon retirement, all union employees are entitled
to payment for the accumulated vacation and compensatory time limited to amounts defined under
their respective collectively bargained agreements. All non-union employees are entitled to similar
benefits as defined by their respective contracts with the Water Authority.

Payment of vacation leave and compensatory time is dependent upon many factors; therefore,
timing of future payments is not readily determinable. However, management believes that
sufficient resources will be available for the payments of vacation leave and compensatory time
when such payments become due.

Retirement Plan

The Water Authority provides retirement benefits for substantially all of its regular, full-time
employees through contributions to the New Y ork State Employees' Retirement System. The
system provides various plans and options, some of which require employee contributions. The
retirement system computes the cost of retirement benefits based on their fiscal year, April 1 to
March 31 (see Note 11).

Cash and Cash Equivalents

For purposes of the statement of cash flows, the Water Authority has adopted the direct method
of reporting net cash flows from operating activities and considers all highly liquid investments
purchased with a maturity of three months or less to be cash equivalents.

Receivables

All receivables are reported at their gross values and, where appropriate, are reduced by the
estimated portion that is expected to be uncollectible. The Water Authority has adopted a policy
of recognizing water revenues in the period billed. These billings generally consist of revenues
earned from the prior three months for quarterly billed customers and revenues earned from the
prior month for monthly-billed customers.
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MOHAWK VALLEY WATER AUTHORITY

NOTES TO COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
March 31, 2012 and 2011

NOTE 1 —SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES —CONTINUED

Inventory

Material and supplies inventory is stated at lower of cost or market. Items consisting of meters,
hydrants and piping are valued on the first-in-first-out (FIFO) method. These materials are
expensed when installed into the water system as part of overall maintenance. Chemicals used in
the treatment of water are purchased in large quantities and stored by various methods depending
on the volatility of the material. The material is expensed as used in the treatment of the water.

Prepaid Expenses

Prepaid expenses are recognized when cash outflows are made prior to an impending liability’s
invoice, service or due date. The balance generally consists of PILOT payments, debt service
paid in advance to the trustee, and property/liability insurance.

Utility Plant

Utility Plant acquired by the Water Authority with an initial, individual cost of more than $5,000
and an estimated useful life in excess of one year are capitalized and recorded on the Statement of
Net Assets. Such assets are stated at cost including interest capitalized during construction, where
applicable. Cogt includes material, direct labor and other items such as supervision, payroll taxes,
employee benefits, transportation and certain preliminary legal, engineering and survey costs. The
cogt of repairs and maintenance is expensed asincurred. Contributed assets including transmission
mains, hydrants, tanks, and pump stations are recorded at fair market value at the date received.

Condtruction projects are conducted on a continual basis in order to maintain or enhance the water
system. Preliminary legal, engineering and surveying costs include studies conducted prior to the
actual congtruction period that directly result in specific congtruction projects. While capital
projects are in process, all associated costs are recorded as work-in-process. Once complete, all
cogts, including legal, engineering, surveying and congruction cogs, are reclassified to their
respective asset categories and depreciated according to their useful lives.

Depreciation has been recorded using the straight-line method. The estimated useful lives for the
major classes of assets include the following:

Class Life in Years
Treatment Facilities 25-75
Office and Lab Equipment 5

V ehicles and Maintenance Equipment 5
Water Transmission and Storage 20-100
Distribution Facilities 15-100




MOHAWK VALLEY WATER AUTHORITY

NOTES TO COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
March 31, 2012 and 2011

NOTE 1 —SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES —CONTINUED

Investments
Investments are sated at fair value.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting
principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the
financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting
period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Reclassifications
Certain fiscal 2011 amounts have been reclassified to conform with current report classifications.

NOTE 2 —CASH

New York State investment statutes govern the Water Authority’ s cash investment policies. In
addition, the Water Authority has its own investment policy that closely resembles New Y ork
State statutes. Board monies must be deposited in FDIC-insured commercial banks or trust
companies located within the State of New York. The Water Authority is authorized to use
demand accounts, certificates of deposit, and investment pools. Permissible investments include
obligations of the U.S. Treasury and U.S. agencies, repurchase agreements, and obligations of
New York State or its localities.

Collateral isrequired for applicable deposits not covered by Federal deposit insurance.
Obligations that may be pledged as collateral are obligations of the United States and its agencies
and obligations of the State and its municipal entities.

The written investment policy requires repurchase agreements to be purchased from banks
located within the State and that underlying securities must be obligations of the Federal
government. Underlying securities must have a market value of at least 105% of the cost of the
repurchase agreement.

The Water Authority has an investment program whereby cash received into its capital trust
accounts are invested in certificates of deposit or repurchase agreements in an effort to maximize
earnings. In addition, other idle cash has been invested in money market accounts backed by
proper collateral. During both fiscal years 2012 and 2011, interest earnings on capital
investments have been in the range of .01%-5.13%.
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NOTE 2 —CASH —CONTINUED

The Water Authority has an agreement with a banking institution to collect, record and deposit
customer payments, known as a lock-box banking service, in an effort to have payments
recorded more timely to customer accounts and create efficiencies in the customer payment
process. In addition, the Water Authority has an agreement with the City of Uticaand alocal
drug and convenience store to process over-the-counter payments by customers.

Cash, cash equivalents (consisting of money market funds) and investments at March 31 are as
follows:

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Fiscal 2012 Fiscal 2011
Bank Carrying Bank Carrying
Balance Amount Balance Amount
Demand Deposits $ 9,033,211 $ 9,122,544 $ 8,405,587 $ 8,130,189
Investments
Credit
Rating Fiscal 2012 Fiscal 2011
Cash and Accrued Income $ 6,642 $ 2,547
U.S. Treasury Bills 0 0
Federated U.S. Treasury Cash Reserves #632 Aag* 5,100,175 8,232,769
Dreyfus Government Prime Cash Management Aag* 0 123,124
BNY Cash Reserves Al* 121,085 80,119
State and Local Government Series (SLGS) Aag* 0 287,700
SLGS, 2.375%, due 11/15/2020 Aaa* 1,710,000 1,710,000
SLGS, 2.07%, due 05/15/2022 Aaa* 287,700 0
Certificates of Deposit 5,693,381 4,374,058
Master Repurchase Agreements Aaa* 1,050,881 1,050,881
Total Investments $13,969,864 $15,861,198

*-Moody's Investors Service
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NOTE 2 —CASH —CONTINUED

Cugtodial credit risk istherisk that in the event of abank failure, the Authority’ s deposits may not
be returned. Section 330.15 of the Federal Depository Insurance Corporation’s (FDIC) regulations
(12 CFR 330.15) governs the insurance coverage of public unit accounts.

The FDIC has established atemporary unlimited coverage for noninterest-bearing transaction
accounts from December 31, 2010 to December 31, 2012. All noninterest-bearing transaction
accounts are fully insured, regardless of the balance of the account. This coverage is separate
from, and in addition to, the insurance coverage provided for other accounts held in FDIC-insured
banks.

For interest-bearing time and savings deposits owned by a public unit and held by the same official
custodian in an insured depository institution within the State in which the public unit is located are
added together and insured up to $250,000. Separately, all demand deposits owned by a public unit
and held by the same official custodian in an insured depository institution within the State in
which the public unit is located are added together and insured up to $250,000.

The Water Authority’s cash accounts are secured by the appropriate amount from the FDIC with
all remaining amounts fully pledged collateral at March 31, 2012. All pledged collateral and
investments are classified in the highest category by being held in bank trust departmentsin the
Water Authority’s name.

NOTE 3 —RESTRICTED ASSETS

Upon creation of the Water Authority as sole operator of the water system under the Public
Authorities Law of the State of New Y ork, certain requirements were established under the law to
ensure sufficient funds were available to pay all costs associated with operating the water system.
The law requiresthe Water Authority to set rates and charges sufficient to pay principal and
interest on outstanding bonds, in accordance with the financing agreement, PILOT payments, and
al other operational, renewal, replacement and maintenance costs. The Public Authorities Law
creates a satutory lien (externally imposed restriction) on revenuesto pay these amountsin
accordance with the financing agreement.  In addition, the financing agreement prescribed certain
bond covenants and identified specific resources (consisting of cash and investments) be
maintained for specific purposes necessary to operate the regional water system (see Note 8 under
“bond covenants’ for alisting of the more significant covenants).

Cash has been deposited into various trust funds with a fiscal agent to satisfy legal covenants.
Further, the amounts have been invested into various short-term investments in compliance with
the Water Authority's investment policy. Certain funds were used for their intended purposes and
may not be currently active.
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NOTE 3 —RESTRICTED ASSETS-CONTINUED

Interest Rate Risk: Interest raterisk is therisk that the value of investments will decrease as aresult
of arisein interest rates.

Cash held under trust indentures or similar instruments governing the issue of bonds shall be
invested only in the permitted investments specified in the indenture or similar instrument,
primarily short-term. Also, investments held outside trust indentures or sSimilar instruments are
regtricted to depositsin interest-bearing accounts secured by collateral obligations of the
United States or the State of New Y ork with a market value of 105% of the amount on deposit.

The following is a specific list of the type of permitted investments and their maximum maturities:

Permitted Investments Maturity Maximum
U.S. Treasuries, government obligations, commercial
paper, tax-exempt obligations, bonds issued by federal 12 Years
agencies and money markets.
Certificates of Deposit 5Years

Credit Risk: Water Authority investment policy limits investments of funds to money markets,
certificates of deposits, and repurchase agreements with appropriate collateral equal to 105% of the
principal amount. Under the Water Authority’s general revenue bond resolution, investment
securities include government obligations guaranteed by the full faith and credit of the United
States, bonds or notes issued by various federa institutions, interest-bearing or demand deposits,
repurchase agreements, money market funds, commercial paper, and tax-exempt obligations rated
A-3or better. Asof March 31, 2012, investmentsin trustee accounts or through investment
agreements as part of obligations held under the trust indenture or smilar instrument are limited to
treasury securities, repurchase agreements and certificates of deposit.

The following is a brief synopsis of the varioustrust funds:

Sinking Fund and Debt Service Reserve Fund

Various sinking funds and the debt service reserve funds are established to fulfill the debt service
reserve requirements on the outstanding bonds as and when they become due and payable.

PILOT Payment Fund

The PILOT payment fund is established to hold funds payable to each municipality and
school district at the times and amounts determined pursuant to the legislation creating the Finance
Authority and Water Authority.
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NOTE 3 —RESTRICTED ASSETS-CONTINUED

Repair and Improvement Fund

The repair and improvement fund is established to fund repairs and improvements to the water
system. The required deposit amount in this fund should be equal to the repair reserve
requirement. The repair reserve requirement stipulates that funds should be used to make up
deficiencies in the promissory note fund; to pay costs of constructing, acquiring, completing or
restoring projects; the costs of renewals to or replacements of projects or extraordinary
maintenance or repairs; to repay certain temporary loans incurred for projects; and to pay other
debts and liabilities of the regional system, PILOT payments and debt service requirements.

Promissory Note Fund

The promissory note fund is established to hold funds payable to the City of Utica at the times
and amounts determined pursuant to the promissory note agreement created when the Finance
Authority and Water Authority bought the water system.

Bond Redemption Fund

Bond redemption funds are established and may be used to purchase or redeem bonds of any
series at a price not greater than 100% of the principal amount plus accrued interest.

Construction Fund

Construction or Project funds are established to fund future construction projects and to acquire
projects necessary to maintain or enhance the current water system.

Special Operating/Capitalized Interest Fund

Special operating/capitalized interest funds are established to hold all capitalized interest on the
various outstanding bonds.

Cost of Issuance Fund

Cost of issuance funds are established to pay for all legal, financial and other costs related to
acquiring and maintaining various bond issues.

Trust Fund Investments

The composition and estimated fair values for each fund’s financial instruments as of March 31,
2012 and 2011 (all of which are held for non-trading purposes) are on the following pages.

The carrying amount for each investment listed approximates fair value of the cash equivalents.
For long-term investments, fair values are estimates based on quoted market prices.
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NOTE 3 —RESTRICTED ASSETS —CONTINUED

2012
Carrying Fair
Amount Value

1996B Series Bonds
Cash Equivalents — Fed. US Treasury Cash Reserves 31,462 31,462
Certificates of Deposit 200,000 205,492
Value of 1996B Bonds 231,462 236,954

1999 Series Bonds
Cash Equivalents — Fed. US Treasury Cash Reserves 13,653 13,653
Master Repurchase Investment 5.13%, 08/01/2029 263,662 263,662
Value of 1999 Series Bonds 277,315 277,315
2000 Series Bonds

Cash Equivalents — Fed. US Treasury Cash Reserves 345,540 345,540
Master Repurchase Investment 5.13%, 04/01/2030 787,219 787,219
Value of 2000 Series Bonds 1,132,759 1,132,759

2001A Series Bonds
Cash Equivalents — Fed. US Treasury Cash Reserves 571,354 571,354
US Treasury Notes-SLGS 2.3748% 11/15/2020 1,710,001 1,710,001
Value of 2001 A Series Bonds 2,281,355 2,281,355

2001B Series Bonds
Cash Equivaents — Fed. US Treasury Cash Reserves 117,213 117,213
US Treasury Notes-SLGS 2.07% 5/15/2022 287,700 287,700
Value of 2001 B Series Bonds 404,913 404,913
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NOTE 3 —RESTRICTED ASSETS —CONTINUED

2012
Carrying Fair
Amount Value

2003 Series Bonds
Cash Equivalents — Fed. US Treasury Cash Reserves 1,490,172 1,490,172
Certificates of Deposit 1,189,000 1,192,929

Value of 2003 Series Bonds 2,679,172 2,683,101
2006A Series Bonds
Cash Equivalents — Fed. US Treasury Cash Reserves 1,621,679 1,621,679
Certificates of Deposit 400,000 410,140

Value of 2006A Series Bonds 2,021,679 2,031,819
2008A Series Bonds
Cash Equivalents — Fed. US Treasury Cash Reserves 572,719 572,719
Certificates of Deposit 696,000 707,793

Value of 2008A Series Bonds 1,268,719 1,280,512
R & | Fund, Pilot Fund, Promissory Note
Bank of New Y ork Cash Reserves 121,085 121,085
Cash Equivalents — Fed. US Treasury Cash Reserves 336,382 336,382
Certificates of Deposit 3,124,000 3,183,669
Vaue of R& 1 Fund, Pilot Fund, and Promissory Note 3,581,467 3,641,136

Total Value of All Restricted Investments $ 13,878,841 $ 13,969,864
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NOTE 3 —RESTRICTED ASSETS —CONTINUED

1996B Series Bonds
Cash Equivalents — Fed. US Treasury Cash Reserves
Certificates of Deposit

Value of 1996B Bonds

1999 Series Bonds

Cash Equivalents — Fed. US Treasury Cash Reserves

Master Repurchase Investment 5.13%, 08/01/2029
Value of 1999 Series Bonds

2000 Series Bonds

Cash Equivalents — Fed. US Treasury Cash Reserves

Master Repurchase Investment 5.13%, 04/01/2030
Val ue of 2000 Series Bonds

2001A Series Bonds

Cash Equivalents — Fed. US Treasury Cash Reserves

US Treasury Notes-SLGS 2.3748% 11/15/2020
Value of 2001 A Series Bonds

2001B Series Bonds
Cash Equivalents — Fed. US Treasury Cash Reserves
US Treasury Notes-SLGS 4.67% 5/15/2022

Value of 2001 B Series Bonds

Carrying

Amount

31,813

200,000

231,813

59,811

263,662

323,473

403,826
787,219

1,191,045

798,303

1,710,000

2,508,303

126,873

287,700

414,573

2011

Fair
Value

31,813

194,901

226,714

59,811

263,662

323,473

403,826
787,219

1,191,045

798,303

1,710,000

2,508,303

126,873

287,700

414,573
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NOTE 3 —RESTRICTED ASSETS —CONTINUED

2003 Series Bonds
Cash Equivaents — Fed. US Treasury Cash Reserves
Certificates of Deposit

Value of 2003 Series Bonds

2006A Series Bonds
Cash Equivaents — Fed. US Treasury Cash Reserves
Dreyfus Government Prime Cash Management
Certificates of Deposit

Val ue of 2006A Series Bonds

2008A Series Bonds
Cash Equivaents — Fed. US Treasury Cash Reserves
Dreyfus Government Prime Cash Management
Certificates of Deposit

Val ue of 2008A Series Bonds

R & | Fund, Pilot Fund, Promissory Note

Bank of New Y ork Cash Reserves

Cash Equivaents — Fed. US Treasury Cash Reserves
Certificates of Deposit

Value of R&I Fund, Pilot Fund, and Promissory Note

Total Value of All Restricted Investments

Carrying

Amount

3,447,817

192,929

3,640,746

1,873,415
13,344

400,000

2,286,759

499,598
109,780

792,551

1,401,929

80,119
993,860
2,773,995

3,847,974

15,846,615

2011

Fair
Value

3,447,817

192,929

3,640,746

1,873,415
13,344

393,268

2,280,027

499,598
109,780

803,966

1,413,344

80,119
993,860
2,788,994

3,862,973

$_ 15,861,198
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NOTE 4 —ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE

Billed Water Receivables and Collections

Billed water receivables consist primarily of amounts due from customers for current and
delinquent water charges including penalties, unpaid bill charges, collection fees and shut-off
charges.

Customers are hilled either on amonthly or quarterly basis depending on the type of customer
(commercial or residential), and the level of water usage. Customers are provided athirty-day (30)
payment period from the billing date to pay their current water charges. A late penalty of 15% is
assessed if the bill is not paid during the thirty-day period. Accounts not paid 10 days after the
thirty-day payment period, 40 days from the original billing date, are sent an “unpaid bill” notice
that indicates the cusomer could be subject to additional delinquent charges and action including
the shut-off of their water service. All other charges and their assessment dates remain the same.

If the account remains unpaid ten days (10) after the unpaid bill notice is sent to the customer, a
$15.00 unpaid bill charge is assessed to the account. Thirty to forty days (30-40) following the
unpaid bill charge, 90 days from the billing date, the account is posted with a*20-day notice”
requiring payment of the delinquent balance or risk termination of water service. If the property’s
water service is terminated, it remains until the balance is paid in full.

At the Water Authority’s discretion, if the delinquent balance remains unpaid, the amount is
delivered to the respective government jurisdiction (county, city or village government) and added
to their respective tax bill. Asthe City of Utica collects delinquent water charges, they are remitted
to the Water Authority. The collections of delinquent town and village water charges are remitted
at the end of their respective fiscal year-ends.

Management reviews collectibility of delinquent water charges on an ongoing basis. Based upon
past history, management has determined that the collectibility on these delinquent receivables
decreases rapidly as they become increasingly stale. The majority of the delinquent receivables
have been deemed uncollectible in a range from 40% to 85%, depending on their maturity.
Generally, 98% of accounts billed are eventually collected. At March 31, 2012 and 2011, an
allowance for uncollectible accounts of water sales has been established in the amount of
$412,416 and $406,445, respectively.
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NOTE 4 —ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE —CONTINUED

Lab Fees Receivable

L ab fees receivable consists of amounts due from municipal water systems and other
independent regional water systems for water sample testing performed by the Water Authority’s
water quality lab. Water samples are tested for their chemical breakdown and customers are
provided with a quality report comparing their sample levels to acceptable levels. The Oneida
County Health Department, New Y ork State Health Department and the U.S. Environmental
Protection Agency define the various acceptable levels.

The Water Authority considers lab fees receivable to be fully collectible; accordingly, no
allowance for doubtful accountsisrequired. If amounts become uncollectible, they will be
charged to operations when that determination is made. No such charges were recorded for the
years ended March 31, 2012 and 2011.

Interest Receivable

Restricted trust funds used primarily to fund capital projects, as security to bond holders and to
pay down outstanding debt, have been invested in various investment programs that periodically
earn interest. Investments consist primarily of certificates of deposits, state and local
government securities (SLGS) and repurchase agreements. This interest accrues over time and is
paid out upon request or as stipulated in the investment agreement. Interest is periodically
transferred out of various trust funds to pay down on outstanding debt service. For fiscal year
2012 and 2011, accrued interest receivable on these investments was recorded in the amount of
$33,900 and $23,732, respectively.

Grants Receivable

Various grants are received from time to time based upon successful awards following the
submittal of proposals to various county, state and federal agencies.

These grants primarily consist of funds received from Herkimer and Oneida Counties for
microbiological and residual research of potable water and water sources.

During both fiscal years 2012 and 2011, grants were received from the Herkimer County Water
Quality Department to perform water testing in connection with the Safe Water Drinking Act
(SWDA).
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NOTE 4 —ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE —CONTINUED

Miscellaneous Receivables

The receivable balance consists primarily of sewer billing and collection service fees owed by
municipalities. In addition, fees are owed by various towns for annual hydrant permits.

The Water Authority considers miscellaneous receivables to be fully collectible; accordingly, no
allowance for doubtful accountsisrequired. Immaterial amounts considered uncollectible, if
any, are charged to operations when that determination is made. During fiscal year 2012 and
2011, no such charges were recorded to operations.

NOTE 5 —UTILITY PLANT AND DEPRECIATION

Water System Valuation

The Water Authority performed a revaluation of the water system assets originally purchased
from the City of Uticain December 1996. Utility plant assets were valued at the purchase price
plus the liabilities assumed. The purchase price was established to assure the population served
could reasonably afford the cost of maintaining the system over time. Since the purchase price
was financed through the issuing of revenue bonds, the debt service related to the revenue bonds
was also factored into the affordability of maintaining the system over time. Asaresult, the
value of the utility plant assets was adjusted downward on a uniform basis without regard for
their respective age and condition.

During fiscal 2004, management reviewed each utility plant asset to determine its age and
condition at the time of purchase from the City of Utica. Utility plant assets were revalued to
more correctly state each asset at its market value at the time of purchase. The overall dollar
value of utility plant remained consistent with the original purchase price; however, the values
within the asset classes and asset sub-classes were restated to more realistically reflect the true
value and composition of each asset’s age and condition. In addition, depreciation was
recalculated on each asset resulting in a more accurate net present value.
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NOTE 5 —UTILITY PLANT AND DEPRECIATION-CONTINUED

Contributed Property

Contributed assets including distribution mains, valves, hydrants, tanks, and pump stations are
recorded at fair market value at the date acquired. As part of normal operations, the Water
Authority will acquire newly constructed and existing water districts from cities, towns, villages
and private contractors for operation and maintenance.

In conjunction with the purchase of the water system from the City of Utica in December 1996,
several additional systems within the service area were acquired from various municipalities. In
subsequent years, several other water districts were acquired from municipalities within the
servicearea. These acquired assets and their associated values were not recorded in the Water
Authority’s financial statements.

During fiscal 2004, an inventory was performed to categorize and value these water districts and
water systems. The associated infrastructure including distribution mains, valves, hydrants,
tanks, pump stations and land were recorded on the Water Authority’ s books and records.
Likewise, associated depreciation was calculated and recorded for these acquired assets. The
Water Authority’s financial statements reflect the recording of this additional utility plant and
associated depreciation.

No contributed property was received in fiscal years 2012 and 2011.
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NOTE 5 —UTILITY PLANT AND DEPRECIATION-CONTINUED

Activity for utility plant for the current and preceding fiscal years is summarized as follows:

Balance Balance
3/31/2011 Increases Decreases 3/31/2012
Utility Plant, not being depreciated
Water Rights & Other Intangible Assets  $ 1,050,000 $ 0o % 0o $ 1,050,000
Land 981,954 0 148 981,806
Work In Progress 19,373,646 2,213,940 7,163,777 14,423,809
Total Utility Plant, not being depreciated 21,405,600 2,213,940 7,163,925 16,455,615
Utility Plant, being depreciated
Water Transmission and Storage 10,977,567 6,393,802 0 17,371,369
Distribution 30,986,981 131,507 0 31,118,488
Vehicle and Mai ntenance Equi pment 2,264,654 116,947 76,304 2,305,297
Office and Lab Equipment 2,025,646 126,223 0 2,151,869
Water Treatment 21,326,311 563,960 0 21,890,271
Total Utility Plant, being depreciated 67,581,159 7,332,439 76,304 74,837,294
Less Accumulated De preciation for:
Water Transmission and Storage (1,851,712) (203,842) 0 (2,055,554)
Distribution (6,809,284) (726,517) 0 (7,535,801)
Vehicle and Mai ntenance Equi pment (1,440,911) (227,558) (76,175) (1,592,294)
Office and Lab Equipment (1,658,561) (128,016) 0 (1,786,577)
Water Treatment (3,290,275) (360,390) 0 (3,650,665)
Total Accumulated Depreciation (15,050,743) (1,646,323) (76,175) (16,620,891)
Total Utility Plant, being depreciated, net 52,530,416 5,686,116 129 58,216,403
Total Utility Plant, net $ 73,936,016 $ 7,900,056 $ 7,164,054 $ 74,672,018
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NOTE 5 —UTILITY PLANT AND DEPRECIATION-CONTINUED

Balance Balance
3/31/2010 Increases Decreases 3/31/2011
Utility Plant, not being depreciated
W ater Rights & Other Intangible Assets $ 1,050,000 $ 0 $ 0o $ 1,050,000
Land 981,954 0 0 981,954
Work In Progress 18,928,810 6,179,796 5,734,960 19,373,646
Total Utility Plant, not being depreciated 20,960,764 6,179,796 5,734,960 21,405,600
Utility Plant, being depreciated
W ater Transmission and Storage 10,917,078 60,489 0 10,977,567
Distribution 30,109,142 877,839 0 30,986,981
Vehicle and M aintenance Equipment 2,039,456 277,675 52,477 2,264,654
Office and Lab Equipment 1,979,578 56,663 10,595 2,025,646
W ater Treatment 16,522,354 4,803,957 0 21,326,311
Total Utility Plant, being depreciated 61,567,608 6,076,623 63,072 67,581,159
Less Accumulated Depreciation for:
W ater Transmission and Storage (1,637,461) (214,251) 0 (1,851,712)
Distribution (6,115,024) (694,260) 0 (6,809,284)
Vehicle and M aintenance Equipment (1,300,493) (192,895) (52,477) (1,440,911)
Office and Lab Equipment (1,528,858) (140,298) (10,595) (1,658,561)
W ater Treatment (3,050,698) (239,577) 0 (3,290,275)
Total Accumulated Depreciation (13,632,534) (1,481,281) (63,072) (15,050,743)
Total Utility Plant, being depreciated, net 47,935,074 4,595,342 0 52,530,416
Total Utility Plant, net $ 68,895,838 $ 10,775,138  $ 5,734,960 $ 73,936,016

Depreciation charged to expense at March 31, 2012 and 2011 was $1,646,323 and $1,405,655,
respectively.

NOTE 6 —BOND DISCOUNTS AND BOND ISSUANCE COSTS

Bond discounts and bond issuance costs are capitalized and amortized over the term of the
respective bonds using a straight-line method.
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NOTE 7 —SEWER AND WATER SERVICE COLLECTIONS

Collections of sewer charges imposed by Oneida County, City of Utica, Village of Holland Patent
and the Town of Marcy are collected by the Water Authority. 1n addition, beginning in fiscal year
2011, billing and collection of water service charges assessed by the Village of Bridgewater
(outside the Water Authority’s service ared) were conducted by the Water Authority. The amounts
collected may consist of current and delinquent sewer or water charges.

The delinquent County sewer charges as well as the Village of Holland Patent and the Town of
Marcy sewer charges are added to each customer's property tax bill by the County of Oneidain
January of each year. The delinquent City sewer charges are added to the first installment of the
City’stax bill in April of each year. The Village of Bridgewater has chosen to leave delinquent
amounts unpaid as a water service receivable.

The amounts collected and payable to the other governments primarily consist of three months’
sewer or water rent billings. The amounts owed to these other governments are as follows:

Local Government 2012 2011
Oneida County $ 1,148,301 $ 1,071,783
City of Utica 126,301 120,083
Village of Holland Patent 2,343 3,705
Town of Marcy 14,304 4,846
Village of Bridgewater 1,462 7,642
Total $ 1,292,711 $ 1,208,059
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MOHAWK VALLEY WATER AUTHORITY

NOTES TO COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
March 31, 2012 and 2011

NOTE 8 —LONG-TERM DEBT

The bonds and note outstanding at March 31, 2012 and 2011 bear annual interest, amortize
premiums or discounts and mature as follows:

Issue

1996 Series B
Less: Current Maturities
Total LongTerm

1999 Series (Partially
Advanced Refunded)
Less: Current Maturities
Less: Bond Discount
Total LongTerm

2000 Series (Partially
Advanced Refunded)
Less: Current Maturities
Add: Bond Premium
Total LongTerm

2001 Series A**
(Advanced Refunding)
Less: Current Maturities
Less: Bond Discount
Total LongTerm

2001 Series B**
(Advanced Refunding)
Less: Current Maturities
Total Long-Term

2003 Series

Less: Current Maturities
Less: Bond Discount
Total LongTerm

2006 Series A

Less: Current Maturities
Add: Bond Premium
Less: Deferred Amount
Total LongTerm

2008 Series A

Less: Current Maturities
Less: Bond Discount
Total LongTerm

Promissory Note
Less: Current Maturities
Total Long-Term

Purpose
System Improvement

System Improvement

System Improvement

Refunding of 1996B Bonds

System Improvement

System Improvement

System Improvement/

Underlying
Rating

Baa3

Baa2

Baal

Baal

Baal

A3

A3

Partial Refunding-1999 & 2000 Series

System Improvement

Water System Purchase
Agreement

A3

N/A

Year of
Maturity

2013

2030

2030

2020

2022

2034

2036

2030

2036

Percent
Interest
Rate

2.20%

4.20%-5.75%

4.75%-5.87%

3.43%-5.13%

3.02%-5.31%

2.00%-4.75%

4.00%-5.00%

3.00%-6.25%

Approx. 5.8%

Original
Issue

$ 2,725,000

$ 3,735,000

$ 8,528,720

$26,716,006

$ 2,876,300

$ 8,385,000

$20,325,000

$12,220,000

$ 7,000,000

Balance at March 31,

2012 2011
$ 160,000 $ 320,000
160,000 160,000
$ 0 $ 160,000
$ 0 $ 86,779
0 86,779
0 0
$ 0 $ 0
$ 4,788,720 $ 5,048,720
276,284 261,284
23,966 25,250
$ 4,536,402 $ 4,812,686
$ 14,240,000 $ 15,585,000
1,234,405 1,199,406
1,261,819 1,407,413
$ 11,743,776 $ 12,978,181
$ 1,915,000 $ 2,035,000
125,000 120,000
$ 1,790,000 $ 1,915,000
$ 7,000,000 $ 7,185,000
182,539 177,539
161,659 169,120
$ 6,655,802 $ 6,838,341
$ 18,765,000 $ 19,080,000
402,227 297,227
75,001 78,126
501,546 522,444
$ 17,936,228 $ 18,338,455
$ 11,880,000 $ 11,985,000
107,847 92,847
203,562 215,715
$ 11,568,591 $ 11,676,438
$ 6213172 $ 6,321,876
115,101 108,704
$ 6,098,071 $ 6213172

**__The Environmental Facilities Corporation (EFC) refinanced the 2001A and 2001B bond issues on behalf of the Water Authority as part of larger
refundi ng transactions at the State level. The resulting savings from these refinancings will be past on to MVWA inthe form of additional subsidies to the
existing debt service. The existing principal and i nterest amounts for the EFC bonds will remain as established under their orginal agreements.
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MOHAWK VALLEY WATER AUTHORITY

NOTES TO COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
March 31, 2012 and 2011

NOTE 8 —LONG-TERM DEBT —CONTINUED

2008 A SERIES BONDS

Principal Interest Total
2013 $ 120,000 $ 709,375 $ 829,375
2014 290,000 701,175 991,175
2015 305,000 687,750 992,750
2016 325,000 672,000 997,000
2017 345,000 655,250 1,000,250
2018-2020 1,145,000 1,853,500 2,998,500
2021-2025 3,135,000 2,487,969 5,622,969
2026-2030 6,215,000 1,037,656 7,252,656
11,880,000 8,804,675 20,684,675
Less: Current Portion 107,847 0 107,847
Less: Bond Discount 203,562 0 203,562
$ 11,568,591 $ 8,804,675 $ 20,373,266

2006 A SERIES BONDS

Principal Interest Total
2013 $ 420,000 $ 810,275 $ 1,230,275
2014 725,000 787,375 1,512,375
2015 755,000 754,000 1,509,000
2016 790,000 715,375 1,505,375
2017 830,000 674,875 1,504,875
2018-2020 2,735,000 1,766,275 4,501,275
2021-2025 3,535,000 2,252,707 5,787,707
2026-2030 3,870,000 1,509,387 5,379,387
2031-2035 3,490,000 726,537 4,216,537
2036-2037 1,615,000 69,381 1,684,381
18,765,000 10,066,187 28,831,187
Less: Current Portion 402,227 0 402,227
Add: Bond Premium 75,001 0 75,001
Less: Deferred Amount 501,546 0 501,546
$ 17,936,228 $ 10,066,187 $ 28,002,415
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MOHAWK VALLEY WATER AUTHORITY

NOTES TO COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
March 31, 2012 and 2011

NOTE 8 —LONG-TERM DEBT —CONTINUED

2003 SERIES BONDS

Principal Interest Total

2013 $ 190,000 $ 318,925 $ 508,925
2014 200,000 311,975 511,975
2015 205,000 303,994 508,994
2016 215,000 295,069 510,069
2017 225,000 285,719 510,719
2018-2019 480,000 541,688 1,021,688
2020-2024 1,410,000 1,141,663 2,551,663
2025-2029 1,795,000 762,969 2,557,969
2030-2034 2,280,000 280,725 2,560,725
7,000,000 4,242,727 11,242,727

Less: Current Portion 182,539 0 182,539
Less: Bond Discount 161,659 0 161,659
$ 6,655,802 $ 4,242,727 $ 10,898,529

2001 B SERIES BONDS

Principal Interest Total

2013 $ 125,000 $ 93,137 $ 218,137
2014 125,000 87,457 212,457
2015 130,000 81,522 211,522
2016 135,000 75,222 210,222
2017 140,000 68,553 208,553
2018-2019 295,000 115,712 410,712
2020-2023 965,000 126,165 1,091,165
1,915,000 647,768 2,562,768

Less: Current Portion 125,000 0 125,000
$ 1,790,000 $ 647,768 $ 2,437,768
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MOHAWK VALLEY WATER AUTHORITY

NOTES TO COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
March 31, 2012 and 2011

NOTE 8 —LONG-TERM DEBT —CONTINUED

2001 A SERIES BONDS

Principal Interest Total
2013 $ 1,380,000 $ 694,969 $ 2,074,969
2014 1,425,000 632,731 2,057,731
2015 1,475,000 566,896 2,041,896
2016 1,520,000 497,128 2,017,128
2017 1,570,000 423,713 1,993,713
2018-2019 3,315,000 613,196 3,928,196
2020-2021 3,555,000 274,351 3,829,351
14,240,000 3,702,984 17,942,984
Less: Current Portion 1,234,405 0 1,234,405
Less: Bond Discount 1,261,819 0 1,261,819
$ 11,743,776 $ 3,702,984 $ 15,446,760

2000 SERIES BONDS (Partially Refunded)

Principal Interest Total

2013 $ 275,000 $ 7,906 $ 282,906
2014 0 0 0
2015 0 0 0
2016 0 0 0
2017 0 0 0
2018-2019 0 0 0
2020-2024 1,906,663 4,558,337 6,465,000
2025-2029 2,253,938 7,211,063 9,465,001
2030-2031 353,119 1,541,781 1,894,900
4,788,720 13,319,087 18,107,807

Less: Current Portion 276,284 0 276,284
Add: Bond Premium 23,966 0 23,966
$ 4,536,402 $ 13,319,087 $ 17,855,489




MOHAWK VALLEY WATER AUTHORITY

NOTES TO COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
March 31, 2012 and 2011

NOTE 8 —LONG-TERM DEBT —CONTINUED

1996 B SERIES BONDS

Principal Interest Total
2013 $ 160,000 $ 3,520 $ 163,520
2014 0 0 0
160,0